
AGENDA

CITY OF FALLON - CITY COUNCIL

55 West Williams Avenue

Fallon, Nevada

February 16,2021 - 9:00 a.m.

The Honorable City Council will meet in a regularly scheduled meeting on February 16, 2021 at
9:00 a.m. in the City Coimcil Chambers, 55 West Williams Avenue, Fallon, Nevada.

Items on the agenda may be taken out of order. The Council may combine two or more agenda
items for consideration. The Coxmcil may remove an item from the agenda or delay discussion
relating to an item on the agenda at any time. Unless otherwise allowed by the City Council, public
comments by an individual will be limited to three minutes.

1. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.

2. Certification of Compliance with Posting Requirements.

3. Public Comments: General in nature, not relative to any agenda items.
No action may be taken on a matter raised under this item imtil the matter has been
specifically included on an agenda as an item upon which action will be taken. (For
discussion only)

4. Consideration and approval of Council meeting minutes for January 19,2021. (For
possible action)

5. Approval of Warrants: (For possible action)

A) Accounts Payable
B) Payroll
C) Customer Deposit

6. Consideration and possible adoption of Resolution No. 21-01, a resolution approving a
contract with the United States Department of Energy, Western Area Power
Administration, Sierra Nevada Region, for electric service base resource, and other matters
properly related thereto. (For possible action)

7. Presentation of the Police Department Report for January 2021. (For discussion only)

8. Public Comments (For discussion only)

9. Coimcil and Staff Reports (For discussion only)

10. Executive Session (closed):



Discuss Litigation Matters (For discussion only) (NRS 241 et.seq.)
Negotiations with Operating Engineers Local Union No. 3 (For discussion only)
Negotiations with Fallon Peace Officers Association (For discussion only)

Pursuant to Governor Sisolak's Declaration of Emergency Directive 006 entered on March 22,
2020, and extended by Emergency Directive 016 entered on April 29, 2020, by Emergency
Directive 018 entered on May 7, 2020, by Emergency Directive 021 entered on May 28, 2020, by
Emergency Directive 026 entered on June 29, 2020 and by Emergency Directive 029 entered on
July 31, 2020, this agenda has been posted on or before 9:00 a.m. on February 10, 2021 at City
Hall, to the City's website (https://fallonnevada.gov) and to the State of Nevada public notice
website (https://notice.nv.gov/). Members of the public may request the supporting material for
this meeting by contacting Elsie M. Lee, Deputy City Clerk, at (775) 423-5104 or
elee@fallonnevada. gov. The supporting material for this meeting is also available to the public
on the City's website (https://fallonnevada.gov) and the State of Nevada public notice website
(https://notice.nv.gov/).

Elsie M. Ld^

NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: Reasonable effort will be made to assist and

accommodate physically handicapped persons desiring to attend the meeting. Please call the City
Clerk's Office at 423-5104 in advance so that arrangements may be conveniently made.



February 16^ 2021

4"

Asrenda Item 4

T

Consideration and approval of Council meeting
minutes for January 19, 2021. (For possible
action)



MINUTES

CITY OF FALLON

55 West Williams Avenue

Fallon, Nevada

January 19,2021

The Honorable City Council met in a regularly scheduled Council meeting on the above
date in the Council Chambers, 55 West Williams Avenue, Fallon, Nevada.

Present:

Mayor Ken Tedford
City Coimcilman James D. Richardson
City Councilwoman Kelly Frost
City Councilwoman Karla Kent
Police Chief Kevin Gehman j|||
Chief of Staff Robert Erquiaga -JSiF
City Clerk-Treasurer Sean C. Richardsohl

The meeting was called to

Mayor Tedford led the

Mayor Tedford Inquired if the
requirements. ,

it 9:00 a.m.

postil- in compliance with NRS

Chief of Staff Ergiifiaga ad^a^d that the agenda was posted in compliance with Governor
Sisolak's Emetp^v PireligesliMPIi^inda ancMIe supporting materials were posted at City
Hall, omliiitf^^ll^^te, anithe StatPSfelev^fe public notice website on or before 9:00
a.m. on January 13,2o8fe

PufeBc Comments

Mayor fiiford inquired if! there were any public comments. He noted that comments are
to be general in na^^ not rel^fe to any agenda items. No action may be taken on a matter
raised under this item uj^l the rnatter has been specifically included on an agenda as an item
upon which action will

Mr. Geoff Knell of "ISl Serpa Place read passages fi*om Luke 17. He advised that he
preached yesterday to call the nation to repent because this Wednesday, absolute evil will be
pushed upon the people of this nation and around the world. This nation is the last shining light
to promote the gospel of the Lord Jesus Christ but evil is prevailing because people are not
speaking out against evil. He was walking his dog and was almost run over in the crosswalk
because people are hurrying and do not care. He talked to a depressed teenager who previously
told him there was no God; he wore makeup and dyed his hair red to express his anger. He
provided his testimony to the teenager. He stated that God needs to be brought back into
government.

Januaiy 19,2021 Fallon City Council Meeting



Mayor Tedford thanked Mr. Knell.
No fiirther public comments were noted.

Approval of Warrants

A) Accounts Payable
B) Payroll
C) Customer Deposit

Mayor Tedford inquired if there were any commentgnggarding the accounts payable,
payroll and customer deposit warrants.

No comments were noted.

Councilwoman Kent motioned to approve ther i|^bu^s payable, payroll and customer
deposit warrants and authorize the Mayor to sign the lime; seconded by Councilwoman Frost
and approved with a 3-0 vote by the Coimcil.

Possible introduction of Bill No. 786tl^ ordinance providing for the annexation of
6.05 acres, more or less, located at 879^0^9 and 901 South MaHiiStreet. owned hy
Churchill County, Nevada^and contiguous .to .the corporate limife of the City of
Fallon, Nevada, and for otS|S:®iaitters propefi||||;(iiiated thereto. (This agenda item is
for possible introduction oBljheip^^posed ordiiii^^ce only. If introduced, a public
hearing on the proposed ordiiiiance'^U|]^e set for-fMebruary 1, 2021 and no further
action can or will be taken at ttis meeitt^itAt the |||l^Uc hearing on February 1,
2021, which ypp ncij|j|ed and ai^yeitised, The City Council will take
comment ap||;plen cdSi^er possil^ j^j^oh ordinance as introduced or
amended.)

Chief of Staff Ef^a0'^li^lMned that;| Churchill County Communications (CC
Communieafions) im come forwJffd reques^i^ jWs annexation. The property involved includes
all of djeff structures aifc^d on South Mair^^^et, a portion of which is currently in the City
and recBlll^g City utilitii®||Phurchjll County Communications is in the process of building a
new fecili^^^ will conso^^ all its i||)erations on South Maine Street. If this ordinance is
introduced, andultimately the ||hexation|bes through, then that will allow all the property to be
in the City and aB .those faci]||es to be served by City utilities. This item is for possible
introduction and th^ we woi|p|move forward at the February 1 Council meeting with the
consideration and possible ai^on. The ordinance, if introduced, would be published in the
Lahontan Valley News ̂wittii^^must occur prior to its final consideration and adoption. The
ordinance and a draft annexi&feon agreement were included in the agenda packet. The annexation
agreement has been agreed to by Churchill County. Churchill County owns the property, so they
are working with Churchill Coimty Communications through this process and they are
comfortable with the terms of the draft annexation agreement.

Mayor Tedford inquired if the Council had any comments or questions, or if the public
had any comments or questions.

Coimcilwoman Kent asked if the annexed property was where all the buildings would be
setting.

January 19,2021 Fallon City Council Meeting



Chief of Staff Erquiaga replied affirmatively, they are remodeling a portion of the existing
building, which is within the parcel that is already within the City so there are a couple of
facilities where the addition would be in the annexed parcel.

Councilwoman Kent noted that it may make sense that the county would want to keep the
empty lots as coimty property and earn the taxes off that versus it all coming into the City limits.

Chief of Staff Erquiaga clarified that this annexation would cover all the property owned
by Churchill County in Aat area. Covmty property is not taxed because it is owned by Churchill
Cormty.

Coimcilwoman Kent imderstood now, she thought some of the property was not coming
into the City, but it would all come into the City with this annemtion.

Mayor Tedford reminded that this is the only way the City can serve them utilities; they
must be within City limits. This makes it much cleaner to have all that property in the City.

No further comments were noted.

Coimcilwoman Frost introduced Bill No. 786; J4n ordin^Bce providing for the aimexation
of 6.05 acres, more or less, located at 879, 899 and 901 South Maine Street, owned by Churchill
County, Nevada, and contiguous to the corporate limits of the City of Fallon, Nevada, and for
other matters properly related thereto.

Mayor Tedford stated that Councilwomahiferost introduced Bill No. 786 and the public
hearing will take place on February 1,2021.

Presentation of the Police De|j^jrlniji|m|.^R^ fefeli^gcember 2020

Chief Gehman presented the December monfhly reportifus^e added that the December
incidents and activiti§|^|^igimarily m; jine with no exceptional
variances.

Detective Gdc^ck provi^d the indoctrination lecture to newly stationed Navy
personnel. -.ill....... ''11=1.
School Resource dffider the Polipe Explorers served meals at Fallon Daily

The department tvent through the virtual onsite CALEA assessment. After months of
preparation and da;y||q.f emailitmd Zoom meetings, the department met £ill the standards
and was reaccreditdij||pr a period of four years. That makes the Fallon Police
Department only one oliferee in IteVada that have achieved this accreditation. This is an
annual events but this writhe big one at the end of our term. It was different since the
people were not onsite Idpl^g at everything, but we went around with camariis and it all
went well. Mayor Tedited noted that it was likely more difficult on Zoom than when
onsite visits were conducted; face to face makes things go more smoothly. Chief
Gehman agreed.
Mayor Tedford inquired if the Council had any comments or questions.
No comments were noted.

Mayor Tedford thanked Chief Gehman for the report.

Public Comments

Mayor Tedford inquired if there were any public comments.

January 19,2021 Fallon City Council Meeting



Mr. Geoff Knell of 261 Serpa Place advised that he was not angry with the Mayor and
Council, he was frustrated with the system. He reads the Nevada Revised Statutes, and sees
what the higher up government is doing, and how the City must follow it. Look at the open
meeting laws, right now you would not allow a public comment on the ordinance that you are
going to pass. The State government is such an influence in restricting the First Amendment.
He asked why there was no public comment. He asked why freedom of speech was restricted to
three minutes, five minutes, ten minutes, because it is a deliberate act to restrict the First
Amendment and that is totally unconstitutional. You have overstepped the bounds. Oxir
Declaration of Independence and Bill of Rights is to keep you and your responsibility under
control. But no, it is restricted. You restricted the grievances with the government. You
allowed it to happen. It is a deliberate attack against it. It isd^pffating. It also happens with the
Churchill Covmty Commissioners. They restrict commen||i^|l you sit in your positions and you
walk away and do not ask what my concem is. You go onas business as usual, just like in Luke
17. No regard for God and the people's will. If the fiibple 6b|||| to it, they have the right to
object to it and you need to listen. It is frustrating. It is supposed to be ordained by God, but you
let a government that kills human life, a government that promotes'|?|bmiscuity; young people
are committing suicide and putting makeup On tbpir faces to justify their anger. What we are
seeing today is evil and you are following &e e^|||Im. The Fallon Post hiw^aper is a rag; no
interviews, it is all about propaganda. Our State government dwindles down the First
Amendment to restrict us. He statellfathe had the rij^io discriminate against evil. That is in
the Constitution, to agree or disagreb|i;||ili||ej:.evil restricfe the promotion of the Word of God.
The sermon is to keep you in check as our Decimation of Independence says that he is able to
take you out, to change government. .But ncH?,the State government restricts bringing the
government back to God and ̂ decency. -Ac implomd diem to rebel against the State and
recommended the City secede from Churchifr County. Chii^^ County should secede from the
State because they aure||yy[lmg humgtn life and he sees it eveiy^ single day as he walks his dog.
Several people drive thrb^^ the stop sign. He mked where the teaching in the schools is to say
obey the sirmde stop sign ̂ awi^^Mitegteqple in|||!ie crosswalk and put lights on your bicycle.
People are angry midbitter. People yell at btm when he is in the crosswalk. Our society is not of
God and there is no io#!^ He #|||getting rejillpd by his own leadership that allows murder.
The LGi^^ is a lie, and fri^;provei|'^ stated that he was very passionate with his concerns.

Mayor Tedfordthank^ll^. Kne|||: ̂

Council and Repo^

Mayor Tedford^^Hpired if there were any Coimcil or staff reports.
Councilwoman Klht a§ked for clarification on an issue. She explained that before this

meeting, Mr. Geoff Knell attempted to ask the Council about the ordinance but if he had asked
his question during the public comment portion on item 3, would it have been appropriate at that
time to ask before the adoption.

Mayor Tedford stated that he could have asked questions while we were introducing the
ordinance, on item 5.

Coxmcilwoman Kent confirmed that he could have asked at that time.

Mayor Tedford replied affirmatively. Public comment as in item 3 is for things general in
nature, not relative to any item on the agenda.

January 19,2021 Fallon City Council Meeting



Chief of Staff Erquiaga clarified for the record that the ordinance was not adopted today,
it was introduced. The public hearing on the adoption would take place on February 1,2021.

Mayor Tedford concurred, he read the title's explanation portion into the record again;
"This agenda item is for possible introduction of the proposed ordinance only. If introduced, a
public hearing on the proposed ordinance will be set for February 1, 2021 and no further action
can or will be taken at this meeting." He added that any discussion can be held on this bill
during the public hearing. No further action could be taken at this meeting today, other than
introduction. You can have discussion during introduction, but it does not really matter much
because the hearing is on February 1. Public comment as in item 3 is for something that is not
on the agenda because you would have discussion on that ji|em because he asks for public
comment at that time. But today, we specifically statedpijli there would be a hearing on
February 1. A public hearing is when the public comes mii'llalks. When we have some issue
that is more heated, people come to the public hearing; Tntecsduction is the way to get to the
hearing because the bill needs to be introduced. There -live been times in his career where a bill
was introduced just so discussion could be held the hearing. It is unfair in a way, to have
discussion during the introduction because then the people that were gomg to attend the hearing
would not get to hear the discussion that occurr^ durmg the introduction. He has never limited
discussion during the introduction, it is not a bigd|ai, But i|jiiS; a big deal ifsiomeone complains
about it later because they were not |^e today. SpjllBca^iit]^ is what a pd^i hearing is for,
a discussion on the bill, about whetherjlt will be an or<^i^pi That is how the process works.

Councilwoman Kent stated thal||tei§^gd to get cl^gcation for Mr. Knell.
Councilman Richardson stated that the other issue wdlifct the entire Council was present,

and we could not speak ou||ide of the mi||tdng top^lfer. That the problem when Mr. Knell

Mayor Tedford corifirmed||jat the Cdi|^gil;||^ no! dj^iass an issue together outside of a
convened Council meeting. Council membei^|||hhot discuss an item together or speak to Mr.
Knell together. Only ohifp|puncih^nber wouldiSie able to discuss an item with Mr. Knell. That
is a violatioBnofethe law ahdiw^i^ heiri and never have. The Council cannot email
each others te^ eai^ pther. Me was glad Councilman Richardson brought that up. Other items
can beiiUplight up and discussed 4tu^g Couhisiiii|Bid staff reports, but it is not good practice to
discuss the bill under Council andlii^ reports because someone may want to come during
introduction then leave ahdithen tl^|ssue is discussed later during a Council report. That is
not a good this^ to do because; |he publib might be mislead by statements not made during the
introduction. Introduction really needs no discussion because it is just introduction - but it can
have discussion, it does not re^|J matter. He does not strictly follow Robert's Rules of Order
and has been infbrniai^flfe entiifelme he has been here so the public can say things they want to
say, and the Council caffifiaiili! makes for a better discussion and not such a stiff government.
But he likes agenda item discussions to occur during the presentation of the agenda item, so
people do not come and go. He stated that he could return to agenda item 5 if there was appetite
to do so; he did not mind.

No further comments were noted.

Executive Session

Mayor Tedford tabled the executive session, as it was not needed at this time.

January 19,2021 Fallon City Council Meeting



Adjournment

There being no further business to come before the Council, Mayor Tedford adjourned the
meeting at 9:26 a.m.

Mayor Ken Tedford

Attest:

Sean C. Richardson, City Clerk-Treasurer

jik

..a*
•.= ::sssv;"

s;

January 19,2021 Fallen City Council Meeting



February 16^ 2021

4^

A-'enda Item 6
>

Consideration and possible adoption of Resolution
No. 21-01, a resolution approving a contract with
the United States Department of Energy, Western
Area Power Administration, Sierra Nevada Region,
for electric service base resource, and other matters
properly related thereto. (For possible action)



CITY OF FALLON

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

Agenda Item No. ^
DATE SUBMITTED: January 28,2021

AGENDA DATE REQUESTED: February 16, 2021

TO: The Honorable City Council

FROM: Robert Erquiaga, Chief of Staff

SUBJECT TITLE: Consideration and possible adoption of Resolution No. 21-01, a resolution
approving a contract with the United States Department of Energy, Westem Area Power
Administration, Sierra Nevada Region, for electric service base resource, and other matters
properly related thereto. (For possible action)

TYPE OF ACTION REQUESTED: (Check One)

(X) Resolution ( ) Ordinance
(  ) Formal Action/Motion ( ) Other

RECOMMENDED COUNCIL ACTION: Motion to approve Resolution No. 21-01, a resolution
approving a contract with the United States Department of Energy, Westem Area Power
Administration, Sierra Nevada Region, for electric service base resource, and other matters
properly related thereto.

DISCUSSION: The City of Fallon and the Westem Area Power Administration ("WAPA") are
parties to a current Base Resource Contract which is scheduled to terminate at midnight on
December 31,2024. Pursuant to the Base Resource Contract, WAPA provides the City of Fallon
with an allocation from the output (capacity and energy) from the Central Valley Project and the
Washoe Project, including the environmental attributes. WAPA's 2025 Power Marketing Plan
provides existing customers, including the City of Fallon, with 98 percent of their current Base
Resource allocation. If approved, the new Base Resource Contract would initially provide
Fallon with a Base Resource percentage of 0.29230 and the new contract's term would be from
January 1,2025 through December 31,2054.

FISCAL IMPACT: Cost of Fallon's Base Resource allocation determined pursuant to the Base
Resource Contract

FUNDING SOURCE: The Electric Enterprise Fund

TO BE PRESENTED BY: Robert Erquiaga, Chief of Staff



RESOLUTION NO. 21-01

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONTRACT WITH THE UNITED

STATES DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY, WESTERN AREA POWER

ADMINISTRATION, SIERRA NEVADA REGION, FOR ELECTRIC

SERVICE BASE RESOURCE, AND OTHER MATTERS

PROPERLY RELATED THERETO.

WHEREAS, the City of Fallon owns and operates a municipal electric utility for the
provision of electric energy to its residents and businesses; and

WHEREAS, the City of Fallon and the Western Area Power Administration ("WAPA")
are parties to a current Base Resource Contract which is scheduled to terminate at
midnight on December 31,2024; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Base Resource Contract, WAPA provides the City of
Fallon a percentage of the Base Resource; and

WHEREAS, the Base Resource is defined in part as the Central Valley Project and
Washoe Project (capacity and energy) output determined by WAPA to be available for
customers, including the environmental attributes; and

WHEREAS, WAPA's 2025 Power Marketing Plan provides existing customers,
including the City of Fallon, with 98 percent of their current Base Resource allocation
beginning January 1,2025; and

WHEREAS, the City of Fallon will also receive an additional allocation through
WAPA's 2025 Resource Pool; and

WHEREAS, WAPA has proposed a new Base Resource Contract, 20-SNR-02327,
between the City of Fallon and WAPA; and

WHEREAS, a fiill and complete copy of Base Resource Contract 20-SNR-02327 is
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference; and

WHEREAS, the new Base Resource Contract provides the City of Fallon's percentage
of the Base Resource and the terms and conditions for WAPA to provide the Base Resource
to the City of Fallon from January 1,2025 through December 31,2054; and

WHEREAS, approval of the new Base Resource Contract, 20-SNR-02327, is in the
best interests of the citizens of the City of Fallon.

-1



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Fallon that
Base Resource Contract 20-SNR-02327 between the City of Fallon and WAPA is hereby
approved.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor is authorized to execute said Base
Resource Contract and to execute any and all documents now and in the future in order to
effectuate the contract

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall take effect immediately upon
its approval and adoption.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Fallon, Nevada this
day of February, 2021.

KEN TEDFORD
Mayor

ATTEST:

SEAN RICHARDSON

City Clerk-Treasurer

-2



SNTq?

f Department of Energy
Western Area Power Administration

Sierra Nevada Region
] 14 Parkshore Drive

Folsom,CA 95630-4710

Sent via E-Mail

Mr. Ken Tedford

Mayor
City of Fallen
55 West Williams Avenue

Fallen, NV 89406

Dear Mr. Tedford:

The City of Fallen (Fallen) and the Western Area Power Administration (WAPA) are parties to
the Base Resource Contract. Under the Contract, WAPA provides Fallen a percentage of the
Base Resource. This Contract is scheduled to terminate at midnight on December 31, 2024.

WAPA published its 2025 Power Marketing Plan (Marketing Plan) in the Federal Register
(82 FR 38675) on August 15, 2017. The Marketing Plan provides existing customers with
98 percent of their current Base Resource allocation beginning January 1, 2025. Fallon also
received an additional allocation through the 2025 Resource Pool.

Enclosed is an electronic version of Contract 20-SNR-02327 (Base Resource Contract) between
Fallon and WAPA. The Base Resource Contract provides Fallon's percentage of the Base
Resource and the terms and conditions for WAPA to provide the Base Resource to Fallon
January 1, 2025 through December 31, 2054.

If the terms and conditions of the Base Resource Contract are acceptable, please have the
appropriate official sign the Base Resource Contract, have the signature attested, and return to
Mr. Joshua Blake, mail code N6205, to the address above or iblake@,wapa.gov by March 16,
2021. Once we have countersigned the Base Resource Contract, we will return an executed
version for your files. If you have any questions regarding the above, please contact
Ms. Sandee Peebles at (916) 353-4454.

Sincerely,

Digitally signed by Arun K.

Arun K. Sethi Dale: 2020.09.10
10:48:54 -07'00'

Arun K. Sethi

Vice President of Power Marketing for
Sierra Nevada Region

Enclosure



Contract 20-SNR-02327

UNITED STATES

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

WESTERN AREA POWER ADMINISTRATION

SIERRA NEVADA REGION

CONTRACT FOR ELECTRIC SERVICE

BASE RESOURCE

WITH

CITY OF FALLON



Contract 20-SNR-02327

UNITED STATES
DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

WESTERN AREA POWER ADMINISTRATION
SIERRA NEVADA REGION

CONTRACT FOR ELECTRIC SERVICE
BASE RESOURCE

WITH

CITY OF FALLON

Section Table of Contents Page

1. Preamble 1

2. Explanatory Recitals 1
3. Agreement 3
4. Effective Date and Term of Contract 3

5. Definition of Terms 3

6. Base Resource Estimates and Availability Forecast 9
7. Electric Service Furnished by WAPA 9
8. Delivery Arrangements 11
9. Scheduling Procedures, Business Practices and Protocols 11

10. Exchange Program 13
11. Independent System Operator or Regional Transmission Organization 14
12. WAPA Rates 15

13. Integrated Resource Plan 16
14. Adjustment of Base Resource Percentage 16
15. Metering and Power Measurement Responsibilities 17
16. Changes in Organizational Status 19
17. Protocols, Business Practices and Procedures 20
18. Enforceability 21
19. General Power Contract Provisions 21
20. Exhibits Made Part of Contract 21

21. Execution by Counterparts 22
22. Electronic Signatures 22

Signature Clause
Resolution/Certificate

General Power Contract Provisions

Exhibit A - Base Resource Percentage and Point(s) of Delivery
Exhibit B - Exchange Program
Exhibit C - Regulation and Reserves
Exhibit D - Rate Schedule



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

Contract 20-SNR-02327

UNITED STATES

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

WESTERN AREA POWER ADMINISTRATION

SIERRA NEVADA REGION

CONTRACT FOR ELECTRIC SERVICE

BASE RESOURCE

WITH

CITY OF FALLON

1. PREAMBLE: This Contract is made this day of.

202 , pursuant to the Acts of Congress approved June 17,1902, (32 Stat. 388);

August 26, 1937, (50 Stat. 844); August 4, 1939, (53 Stat. 1187); and August 4, 1977,

(91 Stat. 565); and Acts amendatory or supplementary to the foregoing Acts; between

the UNITED STATES OF AMERICA (United States), acting by and through the

Administrator, Western Area Power Administration, Department of Energy, hereinafter

called WAPA, represented by the officer executing this Contract, or a duly appointed

successor, hereinafter called the Contracting Officer; and CITY OF FALLON, a

municipality, organized and existing under the laws of the State of Nevada, hereinafter

called the Contractor or Fallon, its successors and assigns; each sometimes hereinafter

individually called the Party, and both sometimes hereinafter collectively called the

Parties.

2. EXPLANATORY RECITALS:

2.1 WAPA markets the surplus generation from, and operates a high-voltage

transmission system as a part of, the Central Valley Project (CVP).

Ill

Contract 20-SNR-02327 1



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

2.2 WAPA and the U.S. Department of the Interior, Bureau of Reclamation

(Reclamation), have agreed to work together to efficiently serve Project Use and

Preference Customer loads.

2.3 On August 15, 2017, WAPA's final 2025 Power Marketing Plan (Marketing

Plan) was published in the Federal Register (82 PR 38675). The Marketing Plan

sets forth how WAPA's Sierra Nevada Region will market the power generated

from the CVP and Washoe Project.

2.4 The Marketing Plan provides that starting on January 1, 2025, WAPA will

provide 98 percent of available CVP power to its existing Customers. Existing

Customers will have the right to extend 98 percent of their current Base

Resource percentage as provided in the Marketing Plan and under the terms and

conditions of this Contract.

2.5 On June 17, 2019, WAPA's Notice of Final 2025 Resource Pool

Allocations was published in the Federal Register (84 FR 28039), and Fallen

received an allocation.

2.6 Fallen desires to purchase and WAPA is willing to provide a percentage of

the Base Resource consistent with the Marketing Plan and the terms and

conditions of this Contract.

2.7 Under the Marketing Plan, WAPA requires that its Customers schedule

power in accordance with applicable operating requirements, including those of

the balancing authority area operator and WAPA's sub-balancing authority area

requirements.

Ill

Contract 20-SNR-02327 2



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

2.8 WAPA markets power to Federal Preference Customers at the lowest

possible rates consistent with sound business principles pursuant to Section 1.1

of Delegation Order 00-037.00B.

3. AGREEMENT:

The Parties agree to the terms and conditions set forth herein.

4. EFFECTIVE DATE AND TERM OF CONTRACT:

4.1 This Contract shall become effective on the date of execution and shall

remain in effect until midnight of December 31, 2054, subject to prior termination

as othenwise provided for herein.

4.2 Fallen may reduce its Base Resource percentage or terminate this

Contract for any reason through June 30, 2024.

4.3 The date of initial service under this Contract is January 1, 2025.

5. DEFINITION OF TERMS:

As used herein, the following terms whether singular or plural, or used with or without

initial capitalization, shall have the following meanings:

5.1 "Ancillary Services" means those services that are necessary to support

the transmission of capacity and energy from resources to loads while

maintaining reliable operation of the transmission system in accordance with

Good Utility Practice.

5.2 "BANC" means the Balancing Authority of Northern California or its

successor.

Ill

Contract 20-SNR-02327 3



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26 ///

27 ///

28 ///

5.3 "Base Resource" means CVP and Washoe Project power (capacity and

energy) output determined by WAPA to be available for Customers, including the

Environmental Attributes, only after meeting the requirements of Project Use and

First Preference Customers, and any adjustments for maintenance, reserves,

system losses, and certain ancillary services.

5.4 "Base Resource Operating Capability" means that portion of the Maximum

Operating Capability that WAPA determines to be available to Customers in any

hour.

5.5 "CAISO" means the California Independent System Operator or its

successor.

5.6 "Capacity" means the electrical capability of a generator, transformer,

transmission circuit or other equipment.

5.7 "Central Valley Project (CVP)" means the multipurpose Federal water

development project extending from the Cascade Range in northern California to

the plains along the Kern River, south of the City of Bakersfield.

5.8 "Custom Product" means a combination of products and services which

may be made available by WAPA per Customer request.

5.9 "Customer" means an entity with a contract and receiving electric service

from WAPA's Sierra Nevada Region.

Contract 20-SNR-02327



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

5.10 "Energy" means capacity measured in terms of the work it is capable of

doing over a period of time; electric energy is usually measured in kilowatthours

or megawatthours.

5.11 "Environmental Attributes" means any and all credits, benefits, emissions

reductions, offsets, and allowances, howsoever entitled, attributable to the Base

Resource, and its avoided emission of pollutants.

5.12 "FERC" means the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission or its

successor.

5.13 "First Preference Customer" means a Preference Customer within a

county of origin (Trinity, Calaveras, and Tuolumne) as specified under the Trinity

River Division Act (69 Stat. 719) and the New Melones Project provisions of the

Flood Control Act of 1962 (76 Stat. 1173, 1191-1192).

5.14 "Full Load Service Customer" means a Customer that will have its entire

load at its delivery point(s) met by WAPA, and its Portfolio Manager functions for

those delivery point(s) performed by WAPA.

5.15 "Marketing Plan" means WAPA's final 2025 Power Marketing Plan for the

Sierra Nevada Region.

5.16 "Maximum Operating Capability" means the maximum electrical capability

from CVP generation available to produce energy, capacity and/or provide

ancillary services in any one or more hours.

Ill

III

Contract 20-SNR-02327 5



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

5.17 "Minimum Base Resource" means the amount of Base Resource energy

generated each hour as a result of CVP minimum water releases.

5.18 "NERC" means the North American Electric Reliability Corporation or its

successor.

5.19 "Operating Reserves" means the combination of spinning and non-

spinning reserves required to meet WEGG, NERG, and operating requirements,

including those of the balancing authority area or WAPA's sub-balancing

authority area.

5.20 "Portfolio Manager" means an entity responsible for determining balanced

hourly load and resource schedules for a Customer.

5.21 "Power" means capacity and energy.

5.22 "Preference" means the requirements of Reclamation Law that provide for

preference in the sale of Federal power be given to certain entities, such as

governments (state. Federal and Native American), municipalities and other

public corporations or agencies, and cooperatives and other nonprofit

organizations financed in whole or in part by loans made pursuant to the Rural

Electrification Act of 1936 (See, e.g.. Reclamation Project Act of 1939,

Section 9(c), 43 USG 485h(c)).

5.23 "Primary Marketing Area" means the area generally encompassing

northern and central California, extending from the Cascade Range to the

Tehachapi Mountains and west-central Nevada.

///

Contract 20-SN R-02327 6



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

5.24 "Project Use" means power as defined by Reclamation Law and/or used to

operate CVP and Washoe Project facilities.

5.25 "Rate" means the monetary charge or the formula for computing such a

charge for any electric service provided by WAPA, including but not limited to

charges for capacity (or demand), energy, or transmission service; however, it

does not include leasing fees, service facility charges, or other types of facility

use charges. A Rate will be set forth in a Rate Schedule or in a contract.

5.26 "Rate Adjustment" means a change in an existing Rate or Rates, or the

establishment of a Rate or Rates for a new service. It does not include a change

in Rate Schedule provisions or in contract terms, other than changes in the price

per unit of service, nor does it include changes in the monetary charge pursuant

to a formula stated in a Rate Schedule or a contract.

5.27 "Rate Adjustment Procedures" means those procedures for Rate

Adjustments developed by WAPA, Department of Energy (DOE) or FERC which

include DOE Order 00-037.00B, DOE Order RA 6120-2, 10 CFR 903, and

18 CFR 300, as may be amended.

5.28 "Rate Effective Date" means the first date of the billing period to which a

Rate Schedule or Rate Schedule extension applies. WAPA will provide notice to

the Customers of the Rate Effective Date.

5.29 "Rate Schedule" means a document identified such as a "Rate Schedule,"

"Schedule of Rates," or "Schedule Rate" which designates the Rate or Rates

applicable to a class of service specified therein and may contain other terms

and conditions relating to the service. On the effective date of this Contract,

Contract 20-SNR-02327 7



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

18 CFR 300.1(b)(6) provides FERC may not approve a WAPA Rate Schedule for

a period that exceeds five (5) years. The Rate Schedule shall include the Rate

Effective Date and the effective period of the Rate Schedule.

5.30 "Regional Transmission Organization (RTO)" means an organization that

meets the minimum characteristics and performs the minimum functions

specified in FERC Order 2000, as that order may be amended or superseded.

5.31 "Regulation" means the service provided by generating units equipped

and operating with automatic generation control which will enable such units to

respond to direct control signals in an upward or downward direction to match, on

a real time basis, demand and resources, consistent with WEGG, NERG, and the

balancing authority area operator's criteria.

5.32 "Scheduling Coordinator" means an entity that is responsible for providing

hourly load and resource schedules to the balancing authority area operator or

WAPA's sub-balancing authority area, in accordance with a FERG-approved tariff

or WAPA's procedures and practices.

5.33 "Variable Resource Customer" means a Customer that is responsible for

managing its own energy portfolio.

5.34 "Washoe Project" means the Federal water project located in the

Lahontan Basin in west-central Nevada and east-central California.

5.35 "WEGG" means the Western Electricity Coordinating Council or its

successor.

Ill

Contract 20-SNR-02327 8



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

6. BASE RESOURCE ESTIMATES AND AVAILABILITY FORECAST:

6.1 At the beginning of each water year, WAPA will post to WAPA's external

website a five-year forecast of Base Resource Operating Capability estimated to

be available, based on high, average, and low hydrological conditions. The

forecast will contain the following information:

6.1.1 Maximum Operating Capability of the CVP for each month;

6.1.2 Energy required for estimated Project Use loads. First Preference

Customers' loads, and ancillary service requirements.

6.2 Each month, WAPA will post to WAPA's external website a monthly Base

Resource forecast of Base Resource Operating Capability and energy estimated

to be available for each month on a rolling twelve-month basis, based on high,

average, and low hydrological conditions. The monthly forecast will contain the

following information:

6.2.1 Maximum Operating Capability of the CVP for each month;

6.2.2 Energy required for estimated Project Use loads. First Preference

Customers' loads, and ancillary service requirements.

6.3 WAPA shall make reasonable efforts, within its control, to ensure the

forecasted Base Resource will be available.

7. ELECTRIC SERVICE FURNISHED BY WAPA:

7.1 Fallen will be entitled to receive a percentage of the Base Resource as set

forth in Exhibit A.

7.2 The estimated amount of energy available to Fallen shall be determined

by multiplying its Base Resource percentage by the total amount of Base

Resource energy available during that period.

Contract 20-SNR-02327 9



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

7.3 The minimum amount of energy Fallon will be required to schedule for

each hour shall be determined by multiplying its Base Resource percentage by

the Minimum Base Resource, unless otherwise agreed to by WAPA. However, if

Fallon does not have sufficient load to take its percentage of the Minimum Base

Resource, any excess energy shall be made available to WAPA for the

Exchange Program as described later in this Contract under Section 10 and

Exhibit B.

7.4 The maximum amount of energy Fallon may schedule in any hour shall be

determined by multiplying its Base Resource percentage by the Base Resource

Operating Capability. However, Fallon may schedule energy in excess of this

maximum, if approved by WAPA, to accommodate purchases or exchanges from

the Exchange Program.

7.5 Fallon will be entitled to the benefit of available regulation and operating

reserves from the CVP in proportion to its Base Resource percentage. The

method for calculating regulation and operating reserves is set forth in Exhibit C.

7.6 WAPA's obligation to provide Fallon's Base Resource is limited to the

actual CVP generation available on a real-time basis. WAPA shall have no

obligation to replace any Base Resource that is unavailable; for instance. Base

Resource that is unavailable due to scheduled maintenance, system

emergencies, forced outages, or other constraints. Any costs incurred by either

Party as a result of deviations between actual and scheduled Base Resource

energy shall be the responsibility of Fallon. WAPA will notify Fallon as soon as

reasonably practicable of any situation that will impact the availability of the Base

Resource, and will modify schedules accordingly, on a pro-rata basis.

Ill

Contract 20-SNR-02327 10



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

7.7 Due to the variable nature of the Base Resource, WAPA may provide a

Custom Product upon a Customer's request. Any Custom Product will be the

subject of a separate contractual arrangement.

8. DELIVERY ARRANGEMENTS:

8.1 WAPA will make Fallen's Base Resource available at the generator bus or

such other delivery point(s) on the CVP transmission system as the Parties will

mutually agree, as specified in Exhibit A. WAPA reserves Network Integration

Transmission Service for the delivery of Base Resource on the CVP transmission

system under its Open Access Transmission Tariff (OATT). The rates and terms

of this service shall be in accordance with WAPA's then-current rate schedule

and OATT.

8.2 If requested by WAPA, Fallen must provide written notification to WAPA

by July 1, 2024, demonstrating that it has arranged for delivery of its Base

Resource energy to its load. Such notification shall include both transmission

and distribution level arrangements, as applicable. WAPA shall have no

obligation to make Base Resource available to Fallen if delivery arrangements

are not in effect. However, Fallen shall not be relieved of its obligation to pay its

percentage share of the Base Resource during the time in which delivery

arrangements are not in effect.

9. SCHEDULING PROCEDURES. BUSINESS PRACTICES AND PROTOCOLS:

9.1 All energy furnished by WAPA to Fallen will be provided on a scheduled

basis. Fallen agrees to abide by the scheduling procedures, business practices

and protocols of the applicable balancing authority area or WAPA's sub-

balancing authority area, as set forth on WAPA's website. The Parties recognize

that the scheduling procedures, business practices and protocols may require

Contract 20-SN R-02327 11



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25 ///

26 ///

27 ///

28 ///

modification from time-to-time to reflect updated operating procedures that may

become applicable to the Parties. In such event, WAPA will make such changes

in accordance with Section 17 of this Contract.

9.2 Designation of Scheduling Coordinator (SC): If Fallon is required to have

a Scheduling Coordinator; Fallon shall notify WAPA of its designated Scheduling

Coordinator not less than ninety (90) days prior to the date of initial service under

this Contract. In the event that Fallen's Scheduling Coordinator arrangement

changes, Fallon shall notify WAPA in writing, not less than thirty (30) days prior

to the change, unless a shorter notification period is agreed to by WAPA.

9.3 If WAPA is Fallon's Portfolio Manager, as set forth in a separate

Custom Product Contract, all scheduling activities and responsibilities wiil

be performed by WAPA on behalf of Fallon. At such time as WAPA is no

longer Fallon's Portfolio Manager, then Fallon will be responsible for performance

of its duties under this Section 9.

9.4 WAPA will provide Customers with the opportunity to comment on

WAPA's maintenance and operations plans. WAPA will facilitate Customer

meetings with the Bureau of Reclamation regarding cost and operation planning.

9.5 In the event that Fallon does not abide by the protocols, business

practices and procedures and WAPA incurs costs as a result, Fallon is

responsible for and shall pay such costs.

Contract 20-SNR-02327 12



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

10. EXCHANGE PROGRAM:

10.1 WAPA will establish and manage an Exchange Program to allow all

Customers to fully and efficiently use their Base Resource percentage. The

Exchange Program is a mechanism to:

10.1.1 Make available to WAPA, for provision to other Customers, any

Base Resource energy a Customer cannot use on a pre-scheduled basis

due to insufficient load; and

10.1.2 Help mitigate the costs incurred by a Customer for the power it is

obligated to pay for, but may not be able to use.

10.2 Under the Exchange Program, all Base Resource energy in excess of

Fallon's load will be retained by WAPA and offered by WAPA for sale to other

Customers. Fallen may purchase energy from the Exchange Program. While

WAPA's retention of excess Base Resource is mandatory, purchasing from the

Exchange Program is voluntary.

10.3 The Exchange Program procedures are set forth in Exhibit B. WAPA may

change the program and procedures of the Exchange Program in accordance

with Section 17 of this Contract.

10.4 WAPA will also offer a seasonal Exchange Program. Under the seasonal

Exchange Program, Fallon may elect to make available to WAPA that portion of

its Base Resource percentage that it is unable to use due to insufficient load.

Fallon, through WAPA, will be able to exchange its unusable Base Resource

percentage with other Customers. Any Customer may submit a request to

WAPA to exchange or purchase energy through the seasonal Exchange

Program. Details of a seasonal exchange will be developed with the Customer

upon request by that Customer.

Contract 20-SN R-02327 13



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

10.5 Exchanges of the Base Resource between Fallen and others outside of

the WAPA-managed Exchange Programs, or other WAPA-managed programs,

are prohibited.

11. INDEPENDENT SYSTEM OPERATOR OR REGIONAL TRANSMISSION

ORGANIZATION:

11.1 WAPA is a sub-balancing authority area within BANC. WAPA operates in

conformance with its sub-balancing authority area and BANG'S balancing

authority area protocols, business practices and procedures. In the event of

changes to any protocols, business practices and procedures, WAPA may make

any changes necessary to this Contract to conform to the operating and

scheduling protocols, business practices and procedures in accordance with

Section 17 of this Contract.

11.2 The Parties understand that, in the future, WAPA may also change its

operating configuration such as by: (1) joining an independent system operator or

RTO or (2) participating in future markets such as energy imbalance markets; or

(3) making system configurations to meet future operating requirements. In such

an event, if WAPA is required to conform to the protocols, business practices or

procedures, WAPA shall make changes to this Contract to conform to the terms

and conditions required by such events in accordance with Section 17 of this

Contract.

11.3 In the event that: 1) WAPA incurs costs from the balancing authority area,

WAPA's sub-balancing authority area, CAISO, an RTO, or a different balancing

authority area for serving Fallen's load; or 2) Fallen does not abide by the

protocols business practices, or procedures of the balancing authority area, an

RTO, or other balancing authority area operator that are applicable to WAPA and

Contract 20-SN R-02327 14



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

WAPA incurs costs as a result, Fallen agrees to pay all such costs attributable to

Fallen.

12. WAPA RATES:

12.1 The Base Resource will be provided on a take-or-pay basis. Fallen will be

obligated to pay its Base Resource percentage share in accordance with the

Rate Schedule attached hereto, whether or not it takes or uses its full Base

Resource percentage.

12.2 Fallen shall pay for the electric service furnished hereunder in accordance

with the Rates, charges, and conditions set forth in the CVP Schedule of Rates

applicable to the Base Resource, effective January 1, 2025, or any superseding

Rate Schedule.

12.3 Rates applicable under this Contract shall be subject to change by WAPA

in accordance with appropriate Rate Adjustment Procedures. If, at any time,

WAPA announces that it has received approval of a Rate Schedule, or extension

of an existing Rate Schedule applicable to this Contract, or if a Rate Adjustment

Procedure is amended, WAPA will promptly notify Fallon thereof.

12.4 Fallon, by providing written notice to WAPA within ninety (90) days after

the Rate Effective Date of a Rate Schedule or Rate Schedule extension

applicable to this Contract, may elect to reduce its Base Resource percentage or

terminate this Contract. Fallon shall designate a Base Resource percentage

reduction or termination effective date that will be effective on the last day of the

billing month not later than two (2) years after the Rate Effective Date. If the

termination effective date is after the Rate Effective Date, the new or extended

Rates shall apply for service taken by Fallon until the termination effective date.

Contract 20-SNR-02327 15



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

Once Fallen provides notice to terminate or reduce its Base Resource

percentage, WAPA will begin the process to reallocate the Base Resource to

other Preference Customers. Fallon may not revoke its notice to terminate or

reduce its Base Resource unless WAPA provides written consent.

12.5 Rates shall become effective under this Contract on the Rate Effective

Date stated in a Rate notice.

13. INTEGRATED RESOURCE PLAN:

13.1 In accordance with the Energy Policy Act of 1992, Fallon is required to

meet the requirements of WAPA's Energy Planning and Management Program

(EPAMP). To fulfill the requirements of EPAMP, Fallon must develop and submit

an integrated resource plan or alternative report, as applicable. Specific EPAMP

requirements are set forth in the Federal Register at (64 FR 62604) and may be

found on WAPA's website. Failure to comply with WAPA's EPAMP requirements

may result in penalties as specified therein. Fallon understands that WAPA may

re-evaluate its EPAMP requirements and change them from time-to-time as

appropriate. Such changes will be subject to a public process and publication in

the Federal Register.

13.2 Should the EPAMP requirements be eliminated, Fallon shall have no

responsibilities under Section 13.1.

14. ADJUSTMENT OF BASE RESOURCE PERCENTAGE:

14.1 Prior to the date of initial service, WAPA may adjust Fallen's Base

Resource percentage, as set forth in Exhibit A herein, if WAPA determines that

Fallen's Base Resource percentage is greater than its actual usage, as specified

in the Marketing Plan.

Contract 20-SN R-02327 16



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

14.2 After the date of initial service, WAPA may adjust Fallon's Base Resource

percentage under any of the following conditions:

14.2.1 Fallon sells energy associated with its Base Resource percentage

to another entity for resale by that entity;

14.2.2 Fallon uses the energy associated with its Base Resource

percentage to serve loads outside of the Sierra Nevada Region's Primary

Marketing Area;

14.2.3 Fallon's annual energy associated with its Base Resource

percentage, is ten percent or more than its actual annual energy usage.

14.3 If WAPA determines that Fallon has met any of the conditions in

Section 14.2 above, WAPA will take the following steps:

14.3.1 Notify Fallon of the nature of the concern;

14.3.2 Analyze Fallon's usage of the energy associated with its Base

Resource percentage and determine if an adjustment is necessary on a

case-by-case basis, with due consideration of any circumstance that may

have temporarily altered Fallon's energy usage;

14.3.3 If an adjustment is determined to be necessary, provide a 90-day

written notice of such adjustment; and

14.3.4 Reduce or rescind Fallon's Base Resource percentage

permanently on the effective date specified in the notice.

15. METERING AND POWER MEASUREMENT RESPONSIBILITIES:

Fallon shall be responsible for electric power metering equipment requirements and

power measurement data associated with the use of WAPA power under this Contract

as follows:

15.1 Unless previously installed and furnished by WAPA, Fallon shall furnish,

install, operate, maintain, and replace, meters and associated metering

Contract 20-SN R-02327 17



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

equipment required for deliveries of WAPA power scheduled to each delivery

point on the WAPA grid, the CAISO-controlled grid, a utility distribution company

grid, or other electrical system, as may be applicable. Such meters shall comply

with the all applicable meter requirements. For instance, meters on:

15.1.1 WAPA's system must meet WAPA's meter requirements:

15.1.2 CAISO's system must meet CAISO's meter requirements; and/or

15.1.3 Pacific Gas and Electric Company's (PG&E) system must meet

PG&E's meter requirements.

15.2 Fallen shall measure power deliveries and provide certified settlement-

quality metering data to WAPA as requested. It is generally contemplated that

WAPA will require this data on a monthly basis.

15.3 If WAPA previously installed and furnished a meter to Fallon, WAPA shall

be allowed unrestricted, unescorted access to its revenue meter equipment.

Fallon shall provide a minimum of three (3) keys or the combination to Fallon's

existing locks. Alternatively, WAPA may provide a WAPA-owned padlock(s).

Access shall include all gates and/or doors required to access the metering

equipment.

15.4 Upon request by Fallon, to evidence receipt of the Environmental

Attributes, WAPA shall timely provide meter data or other mutually agreed upon

data to Fallon measuring the amount of CVP energy that is generated and

delivered to Fallon. Upon mutual agreement of Customers, WAPA and

Reclamation, such meters shall be modified or replaced to meet appropriate

standards or requirements to convey CVP Environmental Attributes to

Customers.

Ill

Contract 20-SNR-02327 18



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

16. CHANGES IN ORGANIZATIONAL STATUS:

16.1 If Fallon changes its organizational status or othenwise changes its

obligation to supply electric power to Preference loads, WAPA reserves the right

to adjust WAPA's power sales obligations under this Contract or to terminate this

Contract, as WAPA deems appropriate. Changes in organizational status

include but are not limited to:

16.1.1 Merging with another entity:

16.1.2 Acquiring or being acquired by another entity;

16.1.3 Creating a new entity from an existing one;

16.1.4 Joining or withdrawing from a member-based power supply

organization; or

16.1.5 Adding or losing members from its membership organization.

16.2 For the purposes of this Section 16, a member is any Preference entity

that is included in a membership, which has the responsibility of supplying power

to the end-use consumer or Customer. Memberships include but are not limited

to:

16.2.1 Municipality;

16.2.2 Cooperative;

16.2.3 Joint powers authority; or

16.2.4 Governmental agency.

16.3 For purposes of this Section 16, participation in a State promulgated direct

access program shall not be deemed to be a change in a Customer's

organizational status or its obligation to supply electric power to Preference

loads.

///

III

Contract 20-SNR-02327 19



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

16.4 Prior to making an organizational change, Failon may request an opinion

from WAPA as to whether Fallon's proposed organizational change will result in

an adjustment of Fallon's Base Resource percentage or termination under this

Section 16. Failon shall provide WAPA with all relevant documents and

information regarding the proposed organizational change. Based on the

documents and information furnished, WAPA will provide Failon with an opinion.

16.5 In addition to the above, if the change in organizational status results in a

proposed transfer of the Contract, or any portion thereof. Section 37 of the

General Power Contract Provisions (GPCP), "Transfer of Interest in Contract,"

generally requires the Customer to obtain prior written approval from WAPA's

Administrator. Organizational changes that typically propose transfer of the

Contract, or a portion of the Contract, and require prior written approval from

WAPA include but are not limited to:

16.5.1 Merging with another entity:

16.5.2 Acquiring or being acquired by another entity;

16.5.3 Joining an entity; and

16.5.4 Creating a new entity.

17. PROTOCOLS. BUSINESS PRACTICES AND PROCEDURES:

WAPA reserves the right to make changes to protocols, business practices and

procedures, as needed. Prior to making any changes, WAPA will provide notice to

Failon and provide Failon with an opportunity to comment on such changes. WAPA will

consider any comments made by Failon before making any changes, and shall provide

a written response to the comments. After a final decision is made by WAPA, if Failon

is not satisfied with the decision, Failon shall have thirty (30) days from the date of

WAPA's final decision to appeal the change to WAPA's Administrator. WAPA will not

implement a change that has been appealed until a final decision by the Administrator.

Contract 20-SNR-02327 20



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

Notwithstanding the provisions within this Section 17, Fallon shall retain its right to

pursue other legal remedies available to it.

18. ENFORCEABILITY:

It is not the intent of the Parties that this Contract confer any rights on third parties to

enforce the provisions of this Contract except as required by law or express provision in

this Contract. Except as provided in this Section, this Contract may be enforced, or

caused to be enforced, only by WAPA or Fallon, or their successors or assigns.

19. GENERAL POWER CONTRACT PROVISIONS:

The GPCP, effective September 1, 2007, attached hereto, are hereby made a part of

this Contract, the same as if they had been expressly set forth herein; Except

Section 11 shall not be applicable to this Contract. In the event of a conflict between

the GPCP and the provisions in the body of this Contract, the Contract shall control.

The usage of the term "Contractor" in the GPCP shall mean Fallon. The usage of the

term "firm" in Articles 17 and 18 of the GPCP shall be deemed to be replaced with the

words "Base Resource."

20. EXHIBITS MADE PART OF CONTRACT:

Exhibit A (Base Resource Percentage and Point(s) of Delivery), Exhibit B (Exchange

Program), Exhibit C (Regulation and Reserves), and Exhibit D (Rate Schedule) existing

under this Contract may vary during the term hereof. Each of said exhibits shall

become a part of this Contract during the term fixed by its provisions. Exhibits A, B, C,

and D are attached hereto, and each shall be in force and effect in accordance with its

terms until respectively superseded by a subsequent exhibit.

///

///

III

Contract 20-SNR-02327 21



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

21. EXECUTION BY COUNTERPARTS:

This Contract may be executed in any number of counterparts and, upon execution and

delivery by each Party, the executed and delivered counterparts together shall have the

same force and effect as an original instrument as if all Parties had signed the same

instrument. Any signature page of this Contract may be detached by any counterpart of

the Contract without impairing the legal effect of any signatures thereon, and may be

attached to another counterpart of this Contract identical in form hereto, by having

attached to it one or more signature pages.

22. ELECTRONIC SIGNATURES:

The Parties agree that this Contract may be executed by handwritten signature or

digitally signed using Adobe Sign or Adobe E-Signature. An electronic or digital

signature is the same as a handwritten signature and shall be considered valid and

acceptable.

Ill

III

III

III

III

III

III

III

III

III

III

III

III

III

Contract 20-SNR-02327 22



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Contract to be executed the day

and year first above written.

WESTERN AREA POWER ADMINISTRATION

By:
Name:

Title:

Arun K. Sethi

Vice President of Power Marketing

for Sierra Nevada Region

Address: 114 Parkshore Drive

Folsom. OA 95630-4710

Attest:

By:.

CITY OF FALLON

By:.
Name:

Title:

Ken Tedford

Mavor

Name: Richardson Address: 55 West Williams Avenue

Title: city Clerk-Ireasurer Fallon. NV 89406

Contract 20-SNR-02327 23



CITY OF FALLON

Resolution/Certificate

Contract 20-SNR-02327



City of Fallen
Exhibit A to

Contract 20-SNR-02327

EXHIBIT A

(Base Resource Percentage and Point(s) of Delivery)

1. This Exhibit A, to be effective under and as part of Contract 20-SNR-02327
(Contract), shall become effective upon execution of the Contract; and shall remain in
effect until either superseded by another Exhibit A or termination of the Contract.

2. Pursuant to the Marketing Plan, Fallen's extended Base Resource percentage
is 0.27242.

3. Pursuant to the Final 2025 Resource Pool Allocations, Fallen received
0.01988 percent of the Base Resource.

4. On the effective date of this Exhibit A, Fallen's percentage of the Base Resource
is 0.29230.

5. Fallen's Base Resource percentage may be adjusted by WAPA as specified in
the Contract.

6. Fallen's Base Resource percentage will be adjusted effective January 1, 2040, in
accordance with the Marketing Plan, to establish the 2040 Resource Pool for new
power allocations.

7. The point(s) of delivery on the CVP transmission system for Shelter Cove's Base
Resource shall be either WAPA's Tracy 230-kV or Tracy 500-kV or Cottonwood 230-kV
Substations, or as requested by Fallen and approved by WAPA.

8. All power deliveries provided under this Contract shall be adjusted for the
applicable transformation and transmission losses on the 230-kV system. Additional
transformation and/or transmission losses shall be applied to deliveries at other than the
230-kV level.

9. This Exhibit A shall be replaced by WAPA as necessary under the terms and
conditions set forth in the Contract, and a signature is not required by either Party.

Exhibit A to Contract 20-SNR-02327 Page 1 of 1



City of Fallen
Exhibit B to

Contract 20-SNR-02327

EXHIBIT B

(Exchange Program)

1. This Exhibit B, to be effective under and as a part of Contract 20-SNR-02327,
(Contract) shall become effective upon execution of the Contract; and, shall remain in
effect until superseded by another Exhibit B or termination of the Contract.

2. Fallen is in agreement with the procedures set forth herein.

3. If necessary, WAPA retains the right to make subsequent revisions to Exhibit B
after consultation with its Customers. At such time as WAPA promulgates a revision of
this Exhibit B, Fallen shall have the option of either accepting the new revision to this
Exhibit B or opting out of making purchases from the Exchange Program. If WAPA
does not receive notice from Fallen opting out of making purchases from the Exchange
Program within 30 days of Fallen's receipt of a revised Exhibit B, Fallen may
automatically continue to make purchases from the Exchange Program if already
participating.

4. Exchange Program:

4.1 WAPA has established separate Exchange Program for the Full Load
Service Customer group and the Variable Resource Customer group. A
Customer cannot be in both the Full Load Service Customer group and the
Variable Resource Customer group at the same time.

4.2 The Exchange Program will take place on a pre-scheduled basis.

4.3 Base Resource power in excess of a Customer's load in any hour will be
distributed by WAPA in the applicable Exchange Program group (Full Load
Service or Variable Resource).

4.4 A Customer may choose whether to make purchases from the Exchange
Program for its group. Participation in making purchases from the Exchange
Program requires a Customer to accept Exchange Program power if it has load
in that hour. However, even if a Customer chooses not to participate in making
purchases, if that Customer's Base Resource amount exceeds its load in any
hour, the excess will go into the Exchange Program for that Customer's group for
that hour, for use by participating Customers with load not met by Base Resource
power in that hour. In other words, the retention of Base Resource in excess of a
Customer's load is mandatory, while participation in making purchases from the
Exchange Program is voluntary.

Exhibit B to Contract 20-SNR-02327 Page 1 of 2



City of Fallen
Exhibit B to

Contract 20-SNR-02327

4.5 If a Customer chooses not to make purchases from the Exchange
Program, a written notice to that effect must be submitted to WAPA by
November 1, 2024. Thereafter, a Customer must submit a written notice to
WAPA at least one (1) month prior to changing its participation status; Except if a
Customer has elected to make purchases from the Exchange Program and
subsequently changes its participation status, the Customer must wait a
minimum of one (1) year to again participate in the Exchange Program.
Participation status will change on the first day of the month following the
required notice period or the minimum one (1) year waiting period.

4.6 A Customer must use its Base Resource power prior to using any other
source to meet its load, unless agreed to by WAPA in writing. A Customer
participating in the Exchange Program must use Exchange Program power prior
to any other source to meet its load, unless agreed to by WAPA in writing.

4.7 Each participating Customer in each group will receive an equal share in
megawatts of that group's Exchange Program power available for that hour, up to
the Customer's unmet load in that hour.

4.8 Any Exchange Program power that is excess to a Customer's unmet load
will go back to the Exchange Program for the group to which the Customer
belongs, for that same hour. This power will be reallocated to participating
Customers in that group on an equal basis until either that group's Exchange
Program has no remaining power in that hour, or no participating Customers in
that group have unmet load in that hour.

4.9 If there is power remaining in the Full Load Service Exchange Program or
the Variable Resource Exchange Program in any hour, and none of the
participating Customers in that group have unmet load in that hour, the remaining
power will go to the other group's Exchange Program for that same hour.

4.10 If, in any hour, no participating Customers have unmet load but there is
power remaining in either group's Exchange Program, that power may be offered
for sale by WAPA unless the amount of power is de minimis.

4.11 Customers' power bills will be adjusted to reflect transactions into and out
of the Exchange Program.

Exhibit B to Contract 20-SNR-02327 Page 2 of 2



City of Fallen
Exhibit 0 to

Contract 20-SNR-02327

EXHIBIT C

(Regulation and Reserves)

1. This Exhibit C to be effective under and as a part of Contract 20-SNR-02327
(Contract), shall become effective upon execution of the Contract; and, shall remain in
effect until superseded by another Exhibit C or termination of the Contract.

2. Definitions of Terms:

2.1 Contingency Reserve: An additional amount of operating reserves
sufficient to reduce Area Control Error (ACE) to zero in ten minutes following loss
of generating capacity, which would result from the most severe single
contingency. Contingency Reserves will consist of Spinning and Nonspinning
Reserves.

2.2 Frequency Response Reserves: Spinning Reserves which provide the
required Frequency Response needed for the reliable operation of an
interconnection. The energy is provided by the generator's governor's response
to a frequency deviation from scheduled system frequency.

2.3 Nonspinning Reserve: That operating reserve not connected to the
system but capable of serving demand within ten minutes, or interruptible load
that can be removed from the system within ten minutes.

2.4 Spinning Reserve: Unloaded generation which is synchronized and ready
to serve additional demand.

3. WAPA's Disposition of Continaencv Reserves and Regulation:

3.1 Contingency Reserves: WAPA will provide all Base Resource schedules
with Contingency Reserves, including Spinning, Nonspinning, and Frequency
Response Reserves. Contingency Reserves will be provided from CVP
generation as available, or procured from other sources as necessary.

3.2 Regulation: WAPA will not provide Regulation with Base Resource
schedules. Any sales of Regulation by WAPA will be credited against the Power
Revenue Requirement.

Exhibit C to Contract 20-SNR-02327 Page 1 of 1



City of Fallen
Exhibit D to

Contract 20-SNR-02327

EXHIBIT D

(Rate Schedule)

1. This Exhibit D to be effective under and as a part of Contract 20-SNR-02327
(Contract), shall become effective upon execution of the Contract; and, shall remain In
effect until superseded by another Exhibit D or termination of the Contract.

2. The CVP Schedule of Rates for Base Resource and First Preference Power

(CV-F13) begins on page 2 of this Exhibit D.

3. This Exhibit D shall be replaced by WAPA as necessary under the terms and
conditions set forth In the Rate Schedule, and a signature Is not required by either
Party.

Exhibit D to Contract 20-SNR-02327 Page 1 of 9



Exhibit D

to Base Resource Contracts/Agreements
Rate Schedule CV-F13

(Supersedes Schedule CV-F12)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

WESTERN AREA POWER ADMINISTRATION

CENTRAL VALLEY PROJECT

SCHEDULE OF RATES FOR BASE RESOURCE AND FIRST PREFERENCE POWER

Effective:

October 1,2011, through September 30,2019. [Note: This rate schedule was extended

by Rate Order No. WAPA-185 through September 30,2024.]

Available:

Within the marketing area served by the Western Area Power Administration (Western),

Sierra Nevada Customer Service Region.

Applicable:

To the Base Resource (BR) and First Preference (FP) Power Customers.

Character and Conditions of Service:

Altemating current, 60-hertz, three-phase, delivered and metered at the voltages and

points established by contract. This service includes the Central Valley Project (CVP)

transmission (to include reactive supply and voltage control from Federal generation sources

needed to support the transmission service), spinning reserve service, and supplemental reserve

service.

Power Revenue Requirement (PRRh

Western will develop the PRR prior to the start of each fiscal year (FY). The PRR will

be divided in two 6-month periods, October through March and April through September, based

Page 2 of 9



on FP and BR percentages. The PRR for the April-through-September period will be reviewed

in March of each year. The review will analyze financial data from the October-through-

Februaiy period, to the extent information is available, as well as forecasted data for the March-

through-September period. If there is a change of $5 million or more, the PRR will be

recalculated for the entire FY. The PRR is allocated to FP Customers and BR Customers based

on formula rates, as adjusted for Hourly Exchange (HE), FP true-up calculation, and midyear

adjustments.

Example of PRR Allocation to FP and BR

Component Formula Allocation

Annual PRR $70,000,000

FP Customers' Allocation (Total
FP% = 5%)

$70,000,000 X 5% $3,500,000

Remaining PRR Allocated to BR $70,000,000 - $3,500,000 $66,500,000

Note: This example is intended to s
adjusted for billing, midyear adjusti

liow the PRR allocation to the customer groups and is not
nents or FP true-up calculation.

FP Power Formula Rate:

The annual FP customer allocation is equal to the annual PRR multiplied by the relevant

FP percentage. The formula rate for FP power has three components.

Component 1:

FP Customer Percentage = FP Customer Load
Gen + Power Purchases - Project Use FP Customer Charge
- FP Customer Percentage x MRR

Where:

FP Customer Load = An FP Customer's forecasted annual load in megawatthours (MWh).

Gen = The forecasted annual CVP and Washoe generation (MWh).

Power Purchases = Power purchases for Project Use and FP loads (MWh).

Project Use = The forecasted annual Project Use loads (MWh).

MRR = Monthly PRR.

Page 3 of 9



Western will develop each FP customer's percentage prior to the start of each FY.

During March of each FY, each FP customer's percentage will be reviewed. If, as a result of the

review, there is a change in a FP customer's percentage of more than one-half of 1 percent, the

percentage will be revised for the April-through-September period and billing adjustments made

for the October-through-March period to reflect the revised percentage.

Table 1: Estimated and Actual Year 1 PRR Allocation Due to FP % True-u

FP Customer Year 1 FP % Year 1 FP and BR Year 1 Actual FP % Year 1 FP and BR Difference

(Based on PRR Allocation (Determined during Actual (adjusted) (Applied in
estimate) Year 2) PRR Allocation Year 3)

Customer A 0.35% $262,500 0.38% $285,000 $22,500

Customer B 0.90% $675,000 0.85% $637,500 ($37,500)
Customer C 2.80% $2,100,000 2.90% $2,175,000 $75,000

Customer D 0.75% $562,500 0.75% $562,500 $0

Total 4.80% $3,600,000 4.88% $3,660,000 $60,000

BR Customers Contractual % $71,400,000 Contractual % $71,340,000 ($60,000)

Total PRR $75,000,000 Total PRR $75,000,000 $0

(Year 1)

In addition. Western is adopting a true-up methodology for FP Customers each year in

order to ensure FP Customers pay their proportionate share of the PRR. The FP percentage

true-up calculation will use actual data for the FY being adjusted. Changes to the PRR based on

FP percentage true-up calculations will be incorporated in the PRR at the begirming of each F Y

as shown in the example below. As shown in the example in Table 1, the total PRR for Year 1,

on October 1, is $75 million, and estimated revenue requirements are allocated to customers

based on their estimated FP and BR percentages. A true-up of each FP percentage for Year 1

occurs in Year 2 and the difference between the estimated and actual will be reflected in the PRR

in Year 3.

Beginning in Year 3, the PRR, as published on October 1, is $73,000,000. Based on the

true-up methodology, the adjustment (difference seen in Table 1) from Year 1 is factored in the

PRR for Year 3, and payment obligations for both FP and BR Customers are appropriately

adjusted as shown in the Table 2 below.

Page 4 of 9



Table 2: FP % Adjustment from Year 1 (Actual to Estimated) Applied in Year 3

FP Customer Year3Est.FP% Year 3 Estimated

PRR Payment
PYF? True-Up
(Year 1 True-Up
Amount)

Total Year 3 Bill

Customer A 0.35% $255,500 $22,500 $278,000

Customer B 0.90% $657,000 ($37,500) $619,500

Customer C 2.85% $2,080,500 $75,000 $2,155,500

Customer D 0.77% $562,100 $0 $562,100

Total 4.87% $3,555,100 $60,000 $3,615,100

BR Customers Contractual % $69,444,900 ($60,000) $69,384,900

Total PRR (Year 3) $73,000,000 $0 $73,000,000

Based on the true-up adjustment from Year 1, the adjusted PRR for Year 3 is

appropriately allocated to both FP and BR Customers.

The percentages in the table below are the maximum percentages for each FP customer

that will be applied to the MRR during the rate period October 1,2011, through September 30,

2016. The maximum percentages were determined based on a critically dry year where there

are hydrologic conditions that result in low CVP generation and, consequently, low levels of BR.

An FP percentage cannot exceed the maximum except in instances where individual FP customer

percentages increase due to load growth. If these maximum percentages are used for

determining the FP customer charges for more than one year. Western will evaluate customer

percentages from the formula rate versus the maximum percentage and make adjustments as

appropriate.

FP Actual Maximum Percentages
Effective Rate Period FY 2012 through FY 2016

FP Customer Maximum FP Customer Percentage
Applied to the MRR

Sierra Conservation Center 1.58%

Calaveras Public Power Agency 3.81%

Trinity Public Utilities District 12.01%

Tuolumne Public Power Agency 3.16%

Total 20.56%

Page 5 of 9



Below is a sample calculation for an FP customer's monthly charge for power.

Example: FP Monthly Customer Charge Calculation

Numerator

FP Customer's Load - MWh 10,000

Denominator

Washoe Generation - MWh 2,500

CVP Generation - MWh 3,700,000

PU Load - MWh (1,200,000)

PU Purchase - MWh 47,000

Calculated Percentage

FP Customer's Percentage 0.39%

Monthly Power Revenue Requirement (MRR) $3,333,333

FP Customer Monthly Charge = (FP % x MRR) $13,000

Component 2:

Any charges or credits associated with the creation, termination, or modification to any

tariff, contract, or rate schedule accepted or approved by the Federal Energy Regulatory

Commission (FERC) or other regulatory bodies will be passed on to each relevant customer.

The FERC's or other regulatory bodies' accepted or approved charges or credits apply to the

service to which this rate methodology applies. When possible, Westem will pass through

directly to the relevant customer FERC's or other regulatory bodies' accepted or approved

charges or credits in the same manner Westem is charged or credited. If FERC's or other

regulatory bodies' accepted or approved charges or credits cannot be passed through directly to

the relevant customer in the same manner Westem is charged or credited, the charges or credits

will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula rate.

Component 3:

Any charges or credits from the Host Balancing Authority (HBA) applied to Westem for

providing this service will be passed through directly to the relevant customer in the same

manner Westem is charged or credited to the extent possible. If the HBA's costs or credits

cannot be passed through to the relevant customer in the same manner Westem is charged or

credited, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula rate.

Page 6 of 9



BR Formula Rate:

The annual BR allocation is equal to the annual PRR less the annual FP customer

allocation. The formula rate for BR has three components.

Component 1:

BR Customer Allocation = (BR RR x BR%)

Where:

BR RR = BR Monthly Revenue Requirement (RR)

BR% = BR percentage for each customer as indicated in the BR contract after adjustments for

programs, such as HE, if applicable.

After the FP Customers' share of the annual PRR has been determined, including a prior

period true-up from the FP formula rate, the remainder of the annual PRR is recovered from the

BR Customers. BR Customers' allocation will also be adjusted by the amount of imder- or

overpayment by FP Customers. The BR RR will be collected in two 6-month periods. For

October through March, 25 percent of the BR RR will be collected. For April through

September, 75 percent of the BR RR will be collected. The monthly BR RR is calculated by

dividing the BR 6-month RR by six. The revenues from the sale of surplus BR will be applied

to the annual BR RR for the following FY.

An example of a reallocation program is the HE program. BR Customers pay for

exchange energy, hourly or seasonally, by adjusting the BR percentage that is applied to the BR

RR. Adjustments to a customer's BR percentage for seasonal exchanges will be reflected in the

customer's BR contract.

An illustration of the adjustment to a customer's BR percentage for HE energy is shown in

the example below.

Page 7 of 9



Example of BR Percentage Adjustments for HE Energy

BR Customer BR % from

Contract

Hourly BR
= 30MWh

Customer's BR >

Load

Customers

Receiving
HE

BR Delivered

(Adj'dforHE)
Revised

BR%

Customer A 20% 6 3 0 3 10.0%

Customer B 10% 3 0 1 4 13.3%

Customer C 70% 21 0 2 23 76.7%

Total 100% 30 3 3 30 100.0%

Component 2:

Any charges or credits associated with the creation, termination, or modification to any

tariff, contract, or rate schedule accepted or approved by FERC or other regulatory bodies will be

passed on to each relevant customer. The FERC's or other regulatory bodies' accepted or

approved charges or credits apply to the service to which this rate methodology applies. When

possible. Western will pass through directly to the relevant customer FERC's or other regulatory

bodies' accepted or approved charges or credits in the same manner Western is charged or

credited. If FERC's or other regulatory bodies' accepted or approved charges or credits cannot

be passed through directly to the relevant customer in the same manner Western is charged or

credited, the charges or credits will be passed through using Component 1 of the formula rate.

Component 3:

Any charges or credits from the HBA applied to Western for providing this service will

be passed through directly to the relevant customer in the same manner Western is charged or

credited to the extent possible. If the HBA's costs or credits cannot be passed through to the

relevant customer in the same manner Western is charged or credited, the charges or credits will

be passed through using Component 1 of the formula rate.

Billing:

Billing for BR and FP power will occur monthly using the respective formula rate. Any

adjustment made at midyear is applicable to the entire FY and billed over the remainder the FY.

Page 8 of 9



Adjustment for Losses:

Losses will be accoimted for under this rate schedule as stated in the service agreement.

Adjustment for Audit Adjustments:

Financial audit adjustments that apply to the formula rate under this rate schedule will be

evaluated on a case-by-case basis to determine the appropriate treatment for repayment and cash

flow management.

Page 9 of 9



Effective September 1, 2007

WESTERN AREA POWER ADM^ISTRATIGN

GENERAL POWER CONTRACT PROVISIONS P^
I. APPLICABILITY.

1. Applicability 1

II. DELIVERY OF SERVICE PROVISIONS.

2. Character of Service 1

3. Use of Capacity or Energy in Excess of Contract Obligation 1
4. Continuity of Service 1
5. Multiple Points of Delivery 2
6. Metering 2
7. Existence of Transmission Service Contract 3

8. Conditions of Transmission Service 3

9. Multiple Points of Delivery Involving Direct and Indirect Deliveries 3
10. Construction, Operation, and Maintenance of Contractor's Power System 3-4

ni RATES, BILLING, AND PAYMENT PROVISIONS.
11. Change of Rates 4
12. Minimum Seasonal or Annual Capacity Charge 4
13. Billing and Payment 4-5
14. Nonpayment of Bills in Full When Due 5
15. Adjustments for Fractional Billing Period 5
16. Adjustments for Curtailments to Firm Service 5-6

IV. POWER SALES PROVISIONS.

17. Resale of Firm Electric Service (Wholesale Sales for Resale) 6
18. Distribution Principles 6
19. Contract Subject to Colorado River Compact 6

V. FACILITIES PROVISIONS.

20. Design Approval 6-7
21. Inspection and Acceptance 7
22. As-Built Drawings 7
23. Equipment Ownership Markers 7
24. Third-Party Use of Facilities 7
25. Changes to Western Control Facilities 7-8
26. Modification of Western Facilities 8

27. Transmission Rights 8
28. Construction and Safety Procedures 8-9
29. Environmental Compliance 9
30. Responsibility for Regulated Materials 9

VI. OTHER PROVISIONS.

31. Authorized Representatives of the Parties 9
32. Effect of Section Headings 10
33. Operating Guidelines and Procedures 10
34. Uncontrollable Forces 10

35. Liability 10
36. Cooperation of Contracting Parties 10-11
37. Transfer of Interest in the Contract or Change in Preference Status 11
38. Choice of Law and Forum 12

39. Waivers 12

40. Notices 12

41. Contingent Upon Appropriations and Authorization 12
42. Covenant Against Contingent Fees 12

*  43. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards 13
44. Equal Opportunity Employment Practices 13
45. Use of Convict Labor 13

*Legal Citation Revised September 1, 2007



Effective September 1,2007

WESTERN AREA POWER ADMINISTRATION

GENERAL POWER CONTRACT PROVISIONS

1. APPLICABILITY.

1. Applicability.

1.1 These General Power Contract Provisions (Provisions) shall be a part of the contract to
which they are attached. In the event these Provisions differ from requirements of the contract, specific terms
set forth in the contract shall prevail.

1.2 If the Contractor has member utilities which are either directly or indirectly receiving
benefits from the contract, then the Contractor shall require such members to comply with Provisions 10, 17,
18,19, 29, 30, 36,43,44, and 45 of these General Power Contract Provisions.

n. DELIVERY OF SERVICE PROVISIONS.

2. Character of Service.

Electric energy supplied or transmitted under the contract will be three-phase, alternating current,
at a nominal frequency of sixty (60) hertz (cycles per second).

3. Use of Capacity or Energy in Excess of Contract Obligation.

The Contractor is not entitled to use Federal power, energy, or capacity in amounts greater than
the Western contract delivery obligation in effect for each type of service provided for in the contract except
with the approval of Western. Unauthorized overruns of contract delivery obligations shall be subject to
charges specified in the contract or the applicable rate schedules. Overruns shall not establish any continuing
right thereto and the Contractor shall cease any overruns when requested by Westem, or in the case of
authorized overruns, when the approval expires, whichever occurs first. Nothing in the contract shall obligate
Westem to increase any delivery obligation. If additional power, energy, or capacity is not available from
Westem, the responsibility for securing additional power, energy, or capacity shall rest wholly with the
Contractor.

4. Continuity of Service.

Electric service will be supplied or transmitted continuously except for: (1) fluctuations,
interraptions, or reductions due to uncontrollable forces, as defined in Provision 34 (Uncontrollable Forces)
herein, (2) fluctuations, interraptions, or reductions due to operation of devices installed for power system
protection; and (3) temporary fluctuations, interruptions, or reductions, which, in the opinion of the party
supplying the service, are necessary or desirable for the purposes of maintenance, repairs, replacements,
installation of equipment, or investigation and inspection. The party supplying service, except in case of
emergency, will give the party to whom service is being provided reasonable advance notice of such
temporary interraptions or reductions and will remove the cause thereof with diligence.



Effective September 1,2007

5. Multiple Points of Delivery.

When electric service is supplied at or transmitted to two or more points of delivery under the same
rate schedule, said rate schedule shall apply separately to the service supplied at or transmitted to each point of
delivery; Provided. That where the meter readings are considered separately, and during abnormal conditions, the
Contractor's system is interconnected between points of delivery such that duplication of metered power is
possible, the meter readings at each affected point of delivery will be adjusted to compensate for duplication of
power demand recorded by meters at alternate points of delivery due to abnormal conditions which are beyond the
Contractor's control or temporary conditions caused by scheduled outages.

6. Metering.

6.1 The total electric power and energy supplied or transmitted under the contract will be
measured by metering equipment to be furnished and maintained by Western, a designated representative of
Westem, or where situations deem it appropriate as determined by Western, by the Contractor or its agent(s). In
the event metering equipment is furnished and maintained by the Contractor or its agent(s) and the equipment is
used for billing and other accounting purposes by Westem, the Contractor shall ensure that the metering equipment
complies with applicable metering policies established by Westem.

6.2 Meters shall be secured by appropriate security measures and meters shall not be accessed
except when the meters are to be inspected, tested, adjusted, or repaired. Representatives of affected parties shall
be afforded reasonable opportunity to be present upon such occasions. Metering equipment shall be inspected and
tested each year by the party responsible for meter maintenance, unless a different test interval is determined in
accordance with good utility practices by an applicable regional metering policy, or as agreed upon by the parties.
Meters shall also be tested at any reasonable time upon request by a party hereto, or by an affected supplemental
power supplier, transmission agent, or control area operator. Any metering equipment found to be damaged,
defective, or inaccurate shall be repaired and readjusted or replaced by the party responsible for meter maintenance
as soon as practicable. Meters found with security breaches shall be tested for tampering and, if appropriate, meter
readings shall be adjusted by Westem pursuant to Provision 6.3 below.

6.3 Except as otherwise provided in Provision 6.4 hereof, should any meter that is used by
Westem for billing or other accounting purposes fail to register accurately, the electric power and energy supplied
or transmitted during the period of failure to register accurately, shall, for billing purposes, be estimated by
Westem from the best available information.

6.4 If inspections and tests of a meter used by Westem for billing or other accounting purposes
disclose an error exceeding 2 percent, or a lesser range in error as agreed upon by the parties, then a correction
based upon the inaccuracy found shall be made to the service records for the period of inaccuracy as determined by
Westem. If the period of inaccuracy cannot be determined, the inaccuracy shall be assumed to have existed during
the entire monthly billing period immediately preceding the billing period in which the inspection or test was made
and the resulting correction shall be made accordingly.

6.5 Any correction in billing or other accounting information that results from a correction in
meter records shall be made in a subsequent monthly bill rendered by Westem to the Contractor. Payment of such
bill shall constitute full adjustment of any claim between the parties arising out of inaccurate metering equipment.



Effective September 1,2007

7. Existence of Transmission Service Contract.

If the contract provides for Western to furnish services using the facilities of a third party, the
obligation of Western shall be subject to and contingent upon the existence of a transmission service contract
granting Westem rights to use such facilities. If Western acquires or constructs facilities which would enable it to
furnish direct service to the Contractor, Westem, at its option, may furnish service over its own facilities.

8. Conditions of Transmission Service.

8.1 When the electric service under the contract is fumished by Westem over the facilities of
others by virtue of a transmission service arrangement, the power and energy will be fumished at the voltage
available and under the conditions which exist from time to time on the transmission system over which the
service is supplied.

8.2 Unless otherwise provided in the contract or applicable rate schedule, the Contractor shall
maintain a power factor at each point of delivery from Westem's transmission agent as required by the
transmission agent.

8.3 Westem will endeavor to inform the Contractor from time to time of any changes planned or
proposed on the system over which the service is supplied, but the costs of any changes made necessary in the
Contractor's system, because of changes or conditions on the system over which the service is supplied, shall not
be a charge against or a liability of Westem.

8.4 If the Contractor, because of changes or conditions on the system over which service under
the contract is supplied, is required to make changes on its system at its own expense in order to continue receiving
service under the contract, then the Contractor may terminate service under the contract upon not less than sixty
(60) days written notice given to Westem prior to making such changes, but not thereafter.

8.5 If Westem notifies the Contractor that electric service provided for under the contract cannot
be delivered to the Contractor because of an insufficiency of capacity available to Westem in the facilities of
others over which service under the contract is supplied, then the Contractor may terminate service under the
contract upon not less than sixty (60) days written notice given to Westem prior to the date on which said capacity
ceases to be available to Westem, but not thereafter.

9. Multiple Points of Deliverv Involving Direct and Indirect Deliveries.

When Westem has provided line and substation capacity under the contract for the purpose of
delivering electric service directly to the Contractor at specified direct points of delivery and also has agreed to
absorb transmission service allowance or discounts for deliveries of energy over other system(s) to indirect points
of delivery and the Contractor shifts any of its load served under the contract from direct delivery to indirect
delivery, Westem will not absorb the transmission service costs on such shifted load until the unused capacity, as
determined solely by Westem, available at the direct delivery points affected is fully utilized.

10. Construction. Operation, and Maintenance of Contractor's Power Svstem.

The Contractor shall, and, if applicable, shall require each of its members or transmission agents to
constract, operate, and maintain its power system in a manner which, as determined by Westem, will not interfere
with the operation of the system of Westem or its transmission agents over which electric services are fumished to
the Contractor under the contract, and in a manner which will coordinate with the protective relaying and other
protective arrangements of the system(s) of Westem or Westem's transmission agents. Westem may reduce or



Effective September 1,2007

discontinue furnishing services to the Contractor if, after notice by Western, the Contractor fails or refuses to make
such changes as may be necessary to eliminate an unsatisfactory condition on the Contractor's power system
which is determined by Western to interfere significantly under current or probable conditions with any service
supplied from the power system of Western or from the power system of a transmission agent of Western. Such a
reduction or discontinuance of service will not relieve the Contractor of liability for any minimum charges
provided for in the contract during the time said services are reduced or discontinued. Nothing in this Provision
shall be construed to render Western liable in any manner for any claims, demands, costs, losses, causes of action,
damages, or liability of any kind or nature arising out of or resulting from the construction, operation, or
maintenance of the Contractor's power system.

m. RATES, BILLING, AND PAYMENT PROVISIONS.

11. Change of Rates.

Rates applicable under the contract shall be subject to change by Western in accordance with
appropriate rate adjustment procedures. If at any time the United States promulgates a rate changing a rate then in
effect under the contract, it will promptly notify the Contractor thereof. Rates shall become effective as to the
contract as of the effective date of such rate. The Contractor, by written notice to Western within ninety (90) days
after the effective date of a rate change, may elect to terminate the service billed by Western under the new rate.
Said termination shall be effective on the last day of the billing period requested by the Contractor not later than
two (2) years after the effective date of the new rate. Service provided by Western shall be paid for at the new rate
regardless of whether the Contractor exercises the option to terminate service.

12. Minimum Seasonal or Annual Capacitv Charge.

When the rate in effect under the contract provides for a minimum seasonal or annual capacity
charge, a statement of the minimum capacity charge due, if any, shall be included in the bill rendered for service
for the last billing period of the service season or contract year as appropriate, adjusted for increases or decreases
in the contract rate of delivery and for the number of billing periods during the year or season in which service is
not provided. Where multiple points of delivery are involved and the contract rate of delivery is stated to be a
maximum aggregate rate of delivery for all points, in determining the minimum seasonal or annual capacity charge
due, if any, the monthly capacity charges at the individual points of delivery shall be added together.

13. Billing and Pavment.

13.1 Western will normally issue bills to the Contractor for services furnished during the
preceding month within ten (10) days after the end of the billing period.

13.2 If Western is unable to issue timely monthly bill(s). Western may elect to render estimated
bill(s). Such estimated bill(s) shall be subject to the same payment provisions as final bill(s), and any applicable
adjustments will be shown on a subsequent monthly bill.

13.3 Payments of bills issued by Western are due and payable by the Contractor before the close
of business on the twentieth (20th) calendar day after the date of issuance of each bill or the next business day
thereafter if said day is a Saturday, Sunday, or Federal holiday. Bills shall be considered paid when payment is
received by Western. Bills will be paid electronically or via the Automated Clearing House method of payment
unless a written request to make payments by mail is submitted by the Contractor and approved by Western.
Should Western agree to accept payments by mail, these payments will be accepted as timely and without
assessment of the charge provided for in Provision 14 (Nonpayment of Bills in Full When Due) if a United States



Effective September 1,2007

Post Office first class mail postmark indicates the payment was mailed at least three (3) calendar days before the
due date.

13.4 The parties agree that net billing procedimes will be used for payments due Western by the
Contractor and for payments due the Contractor by Western for the sale or exchange of electric power and energy,
use of transmission facilities, operation and maintenance of electric facilities, and other services. Payments due
one party in any month shall be offset against payments due the other party in such month, and the resulting net
balance shall be paid to the party in whose favor such balance exists. The parties shall exchange such reports and
information that either party requires for billing purposes. Net billing shall not be used for any amounts due which
are in dispute.

14. Nonpayment of Bills in Full When Due.

14.1 Bills not paid in full by the Contractor by the due date specified in Provision 13 (Billing and
Payment) hereof shall bear a charge of five hundredths percent (0.05%) of the principal sum unpaid for each day
payment is delinquent, to be added until the amount due is paid in full. Western will also assess a fee of twenty-
five dollars ($25.00) for processing a late payment. Payments received will first be applied to the charges for late
payment assessed on the principal and then to payment of the principal.

14.2 Western shall have the right, upon not less than fifteen (15) days advance written notice, to
discontinue furnishing the services specified in the contract for nonpayment of bills in full when due, and to refuse
to resume such services so long as any part of the amount due remains unpaid. Such a discontinuance of service
will not relieve the Contractor of liability for minimum charges during the time service is so discontinued. The
rights reserved to Western herein shall be in addition to all other remedies available to Western either by law or in
equity, for the breach of any of the terms hereof.

15. Adjustments for Fractional Billing Period.

The demand or capacity charge and minimum charges shall each be proportionately adjusted when
fractional billing periods are applicable under this contract. A fractional billing period can occur; 1) at the
beginning or end of electric service; 2) at the beginning or end of irrigation pumping service each year; 3) for a
fractional billing period under a new rate schedule; or 4) for fractional periods due to withdrawals of electric
services. The adjustment will be made based on the ratio of the number of hours that electric service is available
to the Contractor in such fractional billing period, to the total number of hours in the billing period involved.
Energy billing shall not be affected by fractional billing periods.

16. Adjustments for Curtailments to Firm Service.

16.1 Billing adjustments will be made if firm electric service is interrupted or reduced because of
conditions on the power system of the United States for periods of one (1) hour or longer in duration each. Billing
adjustments will not be made when such curtailment of electric service is due to a request by the Contractor or a
discontinuance of electric service by Western pursuant to Provision 14 (Nonpayment of Bills In Full When Due).
For purposes of billing adjustments under this Provision, the term power system of the United States shall include
transmission facilities used under contract but not owned by the United States.

16.2 The total number of hours of curtailed firm electric service in any billing period shall be
determined by adding: (1) the sum of the number of hours of interrupted electric service to (2) the product, of each
reduction, of: the number of hours reduced electric service and the percentage by which electric service was
reduced below the delivery obligation of Western at the time of each said reduction of electric service. The
demand or capacity charge and applicable minimum charges shall each be proportionately adjusted in the ratio that



Effective September 1,2007

the total number of hours of electric service determined to have been curtailed bears to the total number of hours in

the billing period involved.

16.3 The Contractor shall make written claim within thirty (30) days after receiving the monthly
bill, for adjustment on account of any curtailment of firm electric service, for periods of one (1) hour or longer in
duration each, alleged to have occurred that is not reflected in said bill. Failure to make such written claim, within
said thirty-day (30-day) period, shall constitute a waiver of said claim. All curtailments of electric service, which
are due to conditions on the power system of the United States, shall be subject to the terms of this Provision;
Provided. That withdrawal of power and energy under the contract shall not be considered a curtailment of electric
service.

IV. POWER SALES PROVISIONS.

17. Resale of Firm Electric Service (Wholesale Sales for Resale).

The Contractor shall not sell any firm electric power or energy supplied imder the contract to any
electric utility customer of the Contractor for resale by that utility customer; Provided. That the Contractor may
sell the electric power and energy supplied under the contract to its members on condition that said members not
sell any of said power and energy to any customer of the member for resale by that customer.

18. Distribution Principles.

The Contractor agrees that the benefits of firm electric power or energy supplied under the contract
shall be made available to its consumers at rates that are established at the lowest possible level consistent with
sound business principles, and that these rates will be established in an open and public manner. The Contractor
further agrees that it will identify the costs of firm electric power or energy supplied under the contract and power
from other sources to its consumers upon request. The Contractor will demonstrate compliance with the
requirements of this Provision to Western upon request.

19. Contract Subject to Colorado River Compact.

Where the energy sold under the contract is generated from waters of the Colorado River system, the
contract is made upon the express condition and with the express covenant that all rights under the contract shall
be subject to and controlled by the Colorado River Compact approved by Section 13 (a) of the Boulder Canyon
Project Act of December 21, 1928, 43 U.S.C. §§ 617a-e, and the parties to the contract shall observe and be
subject to and controlled by said Colorado River Compact in the construction, management, and operation of the
dams, reservoirs, and powerplants from which electrical energy is to be furnished by Western to the Contractor
under the contract, and in the storage, diversion, delivery, and use of water for the generation of electrical energy
to be delivered by Western to the Contractor under the contract.

V. FACILITIES PROVISIONS.

20. Design Approval.

All facilities, construction, and installation by the Contractor pursuant to the contract shall be subject
to the approval of Western. Facilities interconnections shall normally conform to Western's current "General
Requirements for Interconnection," in effect upon the signing of the contract document providing for each
interconnection, copies of which are available from Westem. At least ninety (90) days, unless otherwise agreed.



Effective September 1,2007

prior to the date the Contractor proposes to commence construction or to incur an obligation to purchase facilities
to be installed pursuant to the contract, whichever date is the earlier, the Contractor shall submit, for the approval
of Western, detailed designs, drawings, and specifications of the facilities the Contractor proposes to purchase,
construct, and install. The Contractor assumes all risks for construction commenced or obligations to purchase
facilities incurred prior to receipt of approval from Westem. Westem review and approval of designs and
construction work in no way implies that Westem is certifying that the designs meet the Contractor's needs.

21. Inspection and Acceptance.

Westem shall have the right to inspect the materials and work fumished by the Contractor, its agents,
employees, and subcontractors pursuant to the contract. Such inspections shall be at reasonable times at the work
site. Any materials or work that Westem determines is defective or not in accordance with designs, drawings, and
specifications, as approved by Westem, shall be replaced or modified, as directed by Westem, at the sole expense
of the Contractor before the new facilities are energized.

22. As-Built Drawings.

Within a reasonable time, as determined by Westem, after the completion of constmction and
installation of facilities pursuant to the contract, the Contractor shall submit to Westem marked as-built prints of
all Westem drawings affected by changes made pursuant to the contract and reproducible drawings the Contractor
has prepared showing facilities of Westem. The Contractor's drawings of Westem facilities shall use drawing title
blocks, drawing numbers, and shall be prepared in accordance with drafting standards all as approved by Westem.
Westem may prepare, revise, or complete said drawings and bill the Contractor if the Contractor fails to provide
such drawings to Westem within a reasonable time as determined by Westem.

23. Equipment Ownership Markers.

23.1 The Contractor shall identify all movable equipment and, to the extent agreed upon by the
parties, all other salvageable facilities constructed or installed on the United States right-of-way or in Westem
substations pursuant to the contract which are owned by the Contractor, by permanently affixing thereto suitable
markers clearly identifying the Contractor as the owner of said equipment and facilities.

23.2 If requested by the Contractor, Westem shall identify all movable equipment and, to the
extent agreed upon by the parties, all other salvageable facilities constmcted or installed on the Contractor's
right-of-way or in the Contractor's substations pursuant to the contract which are owned by the United States, by
permanently affixing thereto suitable markers clearly identifying the United States as the owner of said equipment
and facilities.

24. Third-Partv Use of Facilities.

The Contractor shall notify Westem of any proposed system change relating to the facilities govemed
by the contract or allowing third-party use of the facilities govemed by the contract. If Westem notifies the
Contractor that said system change will, as solely determined by Westem, adversely affect the operation of
Westem's system the Contractor shall, at no cost to Westem, provide a solution to said adverse effect acceptable to
Westem.

25. Changes to Westem Control Facilities.

If at any time during the term of the contract, Westem determines that changes or additions to control,
relay, or communications facilities are necessary to maintain the reliability or control of Westem's transmission



Effective September 1,2007

system, and said changes or additions are entirely or partially required because of the Contractor's equipment
installed under the contract, such changes or additions shall, after consultation with the Contractor, be made by
Westem with all costs or a proportionate share of all costs, as determined by Western, to the be paid by the
Contractor. Westem shall notify the Contractor in writing of the necessary changes or additions and the estimated
costs to be paid by the Contractor. If the Contractor fails to pay its share of said estimated costs, Westem shall
have the right, after giving sixty (60) days' written notice to the Contractor, to terminate the applicable facility
installation provisions to the contract and require the removal of the Contractor's facilities.

26. Modification of Westem Facilities.

Westem reserves the right, at any time, to modify its facilities. Westem shall keep the Contractor
informed of all planned modifications to Westem facilities which impact the facilities installation pursuant to the
contract. Westem shall permit the Contractor to change or modify its facilities, in a manner satisfactory to and at
no cost or expense to Westem, to retain the facilities interconnection pursuant to the contract. At the Contractor's
option, Westem shall cooperate with the Contractor in planning altemate arrangements for service which shall be
implemented at no cost or expense to Westem. The Contractor and Westem shall modify the contract, as
necessary, to conform to the new facilities arrangements.

27. Transmission Rights.

If the contract involves an installation which sectionalizes a Westem transmission line, the Contractor

hereby agrees to provide a transmission path to Westem across such sectionalizing facilities at no cost or expense
to Westem. Said transmission path shall be at least equal, in terms of capacity and reliability, to the path in the
Westem transmission line prior to the installation pursuant to the contract.

28. Construction and Safety Procedures.

28.1 The Contractor hereby acknowledges that it is aware of the hazards inherent in high-voltage
electric lines and substations, and hereby assumes full responsibility at all times for the adoption and use of
necessary safety measures required to prevent accidental harm to personnel engaged in the constmction,
inspection, testing, operation, maintenance, replacement, or removal activities of the Contractor pursuant to the
contract. The Contractor and the authorized employees, agents, and subcontractors of the Contractor shall comply
with all applicable safety laws and building and constmction codes, including the provisions of Chapter 1 of the
Power System Operations Manual, entitled Power System Switching Procedure, and the Occupational Safety and
Health Administration regulations. Title 29 C.F.R. §§ 1910 and 1926, as amended or supplemented. In addition to
the safety program required herein, upon request of the United States, the Contractor shall provide sufficient
information to demonstrate that the Contractor's safety program is satisfactory to the United States.

28.2 The Contractor and its authorized employees, agents, and subcontractors shall familiarize
themselves with the location and character of all the transmission facilities of Westem and interconnections of
others relating to the work performed by the Contractor under the contract. Prior to starting any constmction,
installation, or removal work, the Contractor shall submit a plan of procedure to Westem which shall indicate the
sequence and method of performing the work in a safe manner. No work shall be performed by the Contractor, its
employees, agents, or subcontractors until written authorization to proceed is obtained from Westem.

28.3 At all times when the Contractor, its employees, agents, or subcontractors are performing
activities of any type pursuant to the contract, such activities shall be under supervision of a qualified employee,
agent, or subcontractor of the Contractor who shall be authorized to represent the Contractor in all matters
pertaining to the activity being performed. The Contractor and Westem will keep each other informed of the
names of their designated representatives at the site.

8



Effective September 1, 2007

28.4 Upon completion of its work, the Contractor shall remove from the vicinity of the right-of-
way of the United States all buildings, rubbish, used materials, concrete forms, and other like material belonging to
the Contractor or used under the Contractor's direction, and in the event of failure to do so the same may be
removed by Western at the expense of the Contractor.

28.5 In the event the Contractor, its employees, agents, or subcontractors fail to comply with any
requirement of this Provision, or Provision 21 (Inspection and Acceptance) herein. Western or an authorized
representative may issue an order to stop all or any part of the work until such time as the Contractor demonstrates
compliance with the provision at issue. The Contractor, its employees, agents, or subcontractors shall make no
claim for compensation or damages resulting from such work stoppage.

29. Environmental Compliance.

Facilities installed under the contract by any party shall be constructed, operated, maintained,
replaced, transported, and removed subject to compliance with all applicable laws, including but not limited to the
National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, 16 U.S.C. §§ 470x-6, the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969,
42 U.S.C. §§ 4321-4347, the Endangered Species Act of 1973, 16 U.S.C. §§ 1531-1544, and the Archaeological
Resources Protection Act of 1979, 16 U.S.C. §§ 470aa-470mm, and the regulations and executive orders
implementing these laws, as they may be amended or supplemented, as well as any other existing or subsequent
applicable laws, regulations, and executive orders.

30. Responsibilitv for Regulated Materials.

When either party owns equipment containing regulated material located on the other party's
substation, switchyard, right-of-way, or other property, the equipment owner shall be responsible for all activities
related to regulated materials in such equipment that are necessary to meet the requirements of the Toxic
Substances Control Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 2601-2692, the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C. §§
6901-6992k, the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of 1980, 42 U.S.C. §§
9601-9675, the Oil Pollution Act of 1990, 33 U.S.C. §§ 2702-2761, the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. §§ 1251-1387,
the Safe Drinking Water Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 300f-j26, and the regulations and executive orders implementing these
laws, as they may be amended or supplemented, and any other existing or subsequent applicable laws, regulations,
and executive orders. Each party shall label its equipment containing regulated material in accordance with
appropriate laws and regulations. If the party owning the equipment does not perform activities required under
appropriate laws and regulations within the time frame specified therein, the other party may perform or cause to
be performed the required activities after notice to and at the sole expense of the party owning the equipment.

VI. OTHER PROVISIONS.

31. Authorized Representatives of the Parties.

Each party to the contract, by written notice to the other, shall designate the representative(s) who is
(are) authorized to act in its behalf with respect to those matters contained in the contract which are the functions
and responsibilities of the authorized representatives of the parties. Each party may change the designation of its
authorized representative(s) upon oral notice given to the other, confirmed promptly by written notice.



Effective September 1,2007

32. Effect of Section Headings.

Section headings or Provision titles appearing in the contract or these General Power Contract
Provisions are inserted for convenience only and shall not be construed as interpretations of text.

33. Operating Guidelines and Procedures.

The parties to the contract may agree upon and put into effect from time to time, such other written
guidelines and procedures as may be required in order to establish the methods of operation of the power system to
be followed in the performance of the contract.

34. Uncontrollable Forces.

Neither party to the contract shall be considered to be in default in performance of any of its
obligations under the contract, except to make payment as specified in Provision 13 (Billing and Payment) herein,
when a failure of performance shall be due to an uncontrollable force. The term "uncontrollable force" means any
cause beyond the control of the party affected, including but not restricted to, failure of or threat of failure of
facilities, flood, earthquake, storm, fire, lightning, epidemic, war, riot, civil disturbance or disobedience, labor
dispute, labor or material shortage, sabotage, restraint by court order or public authority and action or nonaction
by, or failure to obtain the necessary authorizations or approvals from, any governmental agency or authority,
which by exercise of due diligence such party could not reasonably have been expected to avoid and which by
exercise of due diligence it shall be unable to overcome. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to require a
party to settle any strike or labor dispute in which it may be involved. Either party rendered unable to fulfill any of
its obligations under the contract by reason of an uncontrollable force shall give prompt written notice of such fact
to the other party and shall exercise due diligence to remove such inability with all reasonable dispatch.

35. Liability.

35.1 The Contractor hereby agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the United States, its
employees, agents, or contractors from any loss or damage and from any liability on account of personal injury,
death, or property damage, or claims for personal injury, death, or property damage of any nature whatsoever and
by whomsoever made arising out of the Contractors', its employees', agents', or subcontractors' construction,
operation, maintenance, or replacement activities under the contract.

35.2 The United States is liable only for negligence on the part of its officers and employees in
accordance with the Federal Tort Claims Act, 28 U.S.C. §§ 1346(b), 1346(c), 2401(b), 2402, 2671, 2672, 2674-
2680, as amended or supplemented.

36. Cooperation of Contracting Parties.

If, in the operation and maintenance of their respective power systems or electrical equipment and the
utilization thereof for the purposes of the contract, it becomes necessary by reason of any emergency or
extraordinary condition for either party to request the other to fumish personnel, materials, tools, and equipment
for the accomplishment thereof, the party so requested shall cooperate with the other and render such assistance as
the party so requested may determine to be available. The party making such request, upon receipt of properly
itemized bills from the other party, shall reimburse the party rendering such assistance for all costs properly and
reasonably incurred by it in such performance, including administrative and general expenses, such costs to be
determined on the basis of current charges or rates used in its own operations by the party rendering assistance.
Issuance and payment of bills for services provided by Western shall be in accordance with Provisions 13 (Billing

10



Effective September 1,2007

and Payment) and 14 (Nonpayment of Bills in Full When Due) herein. Western shall pay bills issued by the
Contractor for services provided as soon as the necessary vouchers can be prepared which shall normally be within
twenty (20) days.

37. Transfer of Interest in Contract or Change in Preference Status.

37.1 No voluntary transfer of the contract or of the rights of the Contractor under the contract shall
be made without the prior written approval of the Administrator of Western. Any voluntary transfer of the contract
or of the rights of the Contractor under the contract made without the prior written approval of the Administrator
of Western may result in the termination of the contract; Provided. That the written approval of the Administrator
shall not be unreasonably withheld; Provided further. That if the Contractor operates a project financed in whole or
in part by the Rural Utilities Service, the Contractor may transfer or assign its interest in the contract to the Rural
Utilities Service or any other department or agency of the Federal Government without such prior written
approval; Provided further. That any successor to or assignee of the rights of the Contractor, whether by voluntary
transfer, judicial sale, foreclosure sale, or otherwise, shall be subject to all the provisions and conditions of the
contract to the same extent as though such successor or assignee were the original Contractor under the contract;
and. Provided further. That the execution of a mortgage or trust deed, or judicial or foreclosure sales made
thereunder, shall not be deemed voluntary transfers within the meaning of this Provision.

37.2 The Contractor shall maintain its status as an entity eligible for preference in Western's sale
of Federal power pursuant to Reclamation law, as amended and supplemented.

37.3 Western shall give the Contractor written notice of Western's proposed determination that the
Contractor has violated Provision 37.1 and Western's proposed action in response to the violation.

37.4 The Contractor shall have 120 days after receipt of Westem's notice provided under
Provision 37.3 to submit a written response to Western. The Contractor may also make an oral presentation to the
Administrator during this 120-day period.

37.5 At any time during this process, the Contractor and Western may agree upon corrective
action to resolve Westem's proposed determination that the Contractor is in violation of Provision 37.1.

37.6 Within 30 days of receipt of the Contractor's written response provided under Provision 37.4,
Western will notify the Contractor in writing of its final decision. The Administrator's written notice will include
the intended action, the effective date thereof, and the reasons for taking the intended action. Implementation of
the Administrator's action shall take place no earlier than 60 days from the Contractor's receipt of such notice.

37.7 Any successor to Westem shall be subject to all the provisions and conditions of the contract
to the same extent as though such successor were an original signatory to the contract.

37.8 Nothing in this Provision shall preclude any right to judicial review available to the
Contractor under Federal law.

11



Effective September 1,2007

38. Choice of Law and Forum.

Federal law shall control the obligations and procedures established by this contract and the
performance and enforcement thereof. The forum for litigation arising from this contract shall exclusively be
a Federal court of the United States, unless the parties agree to pursue altemative dispute resolution.

39. Waivers.

Any waivers at any time by either party to the contract of its rights with respect to a default or any
other matter arising under or in connection with the contract shall not be deemed a waiver with respect to any
subsequent default or matter.

40. Notices.

Any notice, demand, or request specifically required by the contract or these Provisions to be in
writing shall be considered properly given when delivered in person or sent by postage prepaid registered or
certified mail, commercial delivery service, facsimile, electronic, prepaid telegram, or by other means with prior
agreement of the parties, to each party's authorized representative at the principal offices of the party. The
designation of the person to be notified may be changed at any time by similar notice. Where facsimile or
electronic means are utilized for any communication covered by this Provision, the sending party shall keep a
contemporaneous record of such communications and shall verify receipt by the other party.

41. Contingent Unon Appropriations and Authorization.

41.1 Where activities provided for in the contract extend beyond the current fiscal year, continued
expenditures by the United States are contingent upon Congress making the necessary appropriations required for
the continued performance of the United States' obligations under the contract. In case such appropriation is not
made, the Contractor hereby releases the United States from its contractual obligations and from all liability due to
the failure of Congress to make such appropriation.

41.2 In order to receive and expend funds advanced from the Contractor necessary for the
continued performance of the obligations of the United States under the contract, additional authorization may be
required. In case such authorization is not received, the Contractor hereby releases the United States from those
contractual obligations and from all liability due to the lack of such authorization.

42. Covenant Against Contingent Fees.

The Contractor warrants that no person or selling agency has been employed or retained to solicit or
secure the contract upon an agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent
fee, excepting bona fide employees or bona fide established commercial or selling agencies maintained by the
Contractor for the purpose of securing business. For breach or violation of this warranty. Western shall have the
right to annul the contract without liability or in its discretion to deduct from the contract price or consideration the
full amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee.

12



Effective September 1,2007

43. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards.

The contract, to the extent that it is of a character specified in Section 103 of the Contract Work
Hours and Safety Standards Act (Act), 40 U.S.C. § 3701, as amended or supplemented, is subject to the provisions
of the Act, 40 U.S.C. §§ 3701-3708, as amended or supplemented, and to regulations promulgated by the Secretary
of Labor pursuant to the Act.

44. Equal Ooportunitv Employment Practices.

Section 202 of Executive Order No. 11246, 30 Fed. Reg. 12319 (1965), as amended by Executive
Order No. 12086, 43 Fed. Reg. 46501 (1978), as amended or supplemented, which provides, among other things,
that the Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color,
religion, sex, or national origin, is incorporated herein by reference the same as if the specific language had been
written into the contract, except that Indian Tribes and tribal organizations may apply Indian preference to the
extent permitted by Federal law.

45. Use of Convict Labor.

The Contractor agrees not to employ any person undergoing sentence of imprisonment in performing
the contract except as provided by 18 U.S.C. § 3622(c), as amended or supplemented, and Executive Order No.
11755, 39 Fed. Reg. 779 (1973), as amended or supplemented.

13



February 16^ 2021

,  I

Ag-euda Item 7

o
i

Presentation of the Police Department Report for
January 2021. (For discussion only)



CITY OF FALLON

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION
AGENDA ITEM NO. T?

DATE SUBMITTED: 2/8/21 AGENDA DATE REQUESTED: 2/16/21

TO: Mayor and Council

FROM: Kevin Gehman, Chief of Police

SUBJECT: Fallen Police Department Monthly Report for January 2021

TYPE OF ACTION REQUESTED: (Check One)

(  ) Resolution ( ) Ordinanee

(  ) Formal Action/Motion (x) Other (Speeify) Review Only

RECOMMENDED COUNCIL ACTION: For review only

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS: (Attachment, if neeessary)

FISCAL IMPACT: None

FUNDING SOURCE:

EXPLANATION OF IMPACT:

ALTERNATIVES:

Prepared By: Wendy J. Mello Date9_/_^/^(

Reviewed By: Kevin Gehman. Chief of Police Date _2l/ll/^
Presented by Kevin Gehman



MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT

0^r\

\
NEV

JANUARY 2021

1  I P a g e



Calls for Service/Total Incidents Reported

July 2020-June 2021

1600

1400 r

1200 -

1000

I  800

600

400

200

0

TOTAL NUMBER OF CALLS = 4,721

781 757
711

■ 642 M

Mill I
^ ̂  ^ ̂  ̂
^  <c^

July 2019-June 2020

1600

1400

1200

1000

800

600

400

200

TOTAL NUMBER OF CALLS = 8,712

997

839 829

I

836

II
I

JIM Z39_
659

I
I

I
I
I

1^
I
§

I

V§
\\

\N

\N

\\

[xS
V'

739
-fOf-

I
I

i
I

474

I
i

422

-727-

K'N

X

IK\
-A.

>0) fO)

^  n? 'P'

<# O^ #■ s#
n?1^''

2 I P a g e



CRIME SUMMARY

50

January 2021-December 2021

Jan.

2021

Sex Offense 0

T Domestic Battery 3

— Battery Assaults ! 0

> Stolen Vehicle 1

S! Larceny 12

XT Burglary 0

« Robbery 0

■ Homicide 0

50

Mar.

2021

Apr.

2021

May

2021

June

2021

July
2021

Aug.

2021

Sept.

201

Oct.

2021

Nov.

2021

Dec.

2021

January 2020-December 2020

45

40

35

30

25

20

15

10

5

O

I

Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May June July Aug.
2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020

• Sex Offense 1 0 1 0 0 1 0 3

• Domestic Battery 8 7 3 2 1 1 6 9

= Battery Assaults 2 1 0 0 0 1 0 0

✓ Stolen Vehicle 1 2 0 1 0 0 0  1 3

Larceny 18 19 13 7 12 9 7 18

X. Burglary 1 2 0 0 0 0 0 1

m Robbery O 0 2 O 0 0 _  -i; 0

■ Homicide 0 0 0 0 O 0 0 o

Sept.

2020

1

3

O

2

8

O

O

O

Oct.

2020

1

7

1

1

15

O

O

O

-t-

5:!
-1

is.

Nov.

2020

O

3

O

0

10

1

o

o

3 I P a g e



ARREST SUMMARY

AUGUST 2020 - JANUARY 2021
50

45

40

35

30

25

Si;20 1 f
J. i
1 i

10

5

—  -

1_

0 -.ML. ■

Aug. 2020 Sept. 2020 Oct. 2020 Nov. 2020 r Dec. 2020 Jan.2021

i Felony/GM 4  i 5 2 6 5 4
s Misd. 23 ;

1

i

to

12 14 8 9

DUI's 4  1 2 0 1 1 6

y Juvenile Misd. 1  j 2 0 0 1 1

•>; Juvenile Felony/GM 0  1 0 0 1 0 2

y CPCs
1 2 0 0 4 0

■ Domestic Violence 3 3 2 1 2 2

FEBRUARY 2020 - JULY 2020
50

45

40

35

30

25

20

15

10

5

0

i

Felony/GM

Misd.

DUI's

y Juvenile Misd.

Juvenile Felony/GM

CPCs

Domestic Violence

Feb. 2020

0

18

2

2

1

2

4

'

Mar. 2020 j Apr. 2020

0  ̂ 8

-

18

2

2

1

2

2

3

1

0

0

0

May 2020

4

1

3

1

1

.TL Ssbl,
June 2020 i July 2020

6  : ' 6

14 14

2  ̂ ^

0

2

0

0

4

1

4 I P a g e



MOVING CITATIONS & TRAFFIC WARNINGS

JULY 2020 - JUNE 2021

Citations = 108/Warnings = 877

320

280

240

200

160

120

80

40

253

-487-

13

JS

114

93

_2a

1
16 15

118

90

17 -22-
14

July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. Mar. April May June
2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021

B Traffic Citations oTraffic Warnings

320

280

240

200

160

120

80

40

0

JULY 2019-JUNE 2020

Citations = 450/Warnings =2,263

Jill.

-25T

42

1

249

200

72

50
59

i

"302"

212

127

48

i
58

287

48

i

-445-
158

-25-

7  5 12

July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. Mar. April May June
2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020

BTraffic Citations OTraffic Warnings |

5 I P a g e



TRAFFIC ACCIDENTS

20

18

16

14

12

10

8

6

4

2

JULY 2020-JUNE 2021

Total Accidents = 80

14

i 12 12

-TT- -Ti-

I
I

I

I

El

I
I

m
July Aug Sept. Oct Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May June
2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021 2021

s Public Property □ Private Property

20

JULY 2019-JUNE 2020

Total Accidents: 162

18

16

14

12

10

a

6

4

2

0

-ts-

I

10 10

I
I

12

I%

12

I

I
-TT-

El
July Aug Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May June
2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020

□ Public Property □ Private Property

6 I P a g e



ANIMAL SHELTER SERVICE

JULY 2020 - JUNE 2021

Total Animals = 554

180

160

140

120

100

80

60

40

20

63

Sept.
2020

Nov

20202020 2020

July
2020

Aug
2020

Jan.

2021

Feb.

2021

Mar.

2021

Apr.

2021

May
2021

June

2021

HCounty Animals oCitv Animals

180

160

140

120

100

80

60

40

20

0

JULY 2019-JUNE 2020

Total Animals = 1,365

83

63
-jxr

I
i

♦

♦ ♦

♦ ♦
*■ *

I

66

♦

July
2019

Aug
2019

Mar.
20202019 2020

Sept.
2019

Oct.
2019

Nov.
2019

May
2020

June
2020

laCounty Animals a City Animals

7 I P a g e



Fallon Police Department

Citizen Survey Results
December 2020

When you contacted the Police Department, how satisfied were you with the abiiity of the
dispatcher or empioyee that assisted you?

VERY

SATISFIED

SATISFIED DISSATISFIED NO OPINION

2 1 1

Were you satisfied with the courtesy and concern shown by the dispatcher or employee?

VERY

SATISFIED
SATISFIED DISSATISFIED NO OPINION

2 2

Are you satisfied with the Police Department's response time?

VERY

SATISFIED

SATISFIED DISSATISFIED NO OPINION

3 1

Regarding your most recent contact, please rate the Officer in the foilowing areas:

Officer name(s) Roman Sanchez.

VERY

SATISFIED

SATISFIED DISSATISFIED NO OPINION

Concern 2 2

Courtesy 3 2

Knowledge 1 2 1

Problem Solving
Ability

2 1 1

Professional

Conduct

3 1

Overaii, how satisfied are you with the Fallon Police Department?

VERY

SATISFIED

SATISFIED DISSATISFIED NO OPINION

2 1

8 I P a g e



Fallon Police Department

January 2021

Citizen Survey Comments

Prior to the transfer of my call from 911 it was confusing as to why and to whom my
"problem" was being referred.

Not only did Officer Sanchez examine, photograph, and interview me for petty
vandalism on my property, he checked with all neighbors and found some vandalism at

several others. Again, he interviewed and documented my neighbors as well. He
suggested that I implement a house watch, which I did, and I've noticed an increased

presence of patrols in my neighborhood. Thank you. Officer Sanchez, and other officers
on the force.

9 I P a g e



Fallon Police Department

Activities / Special Events

Januarv 2021

INDOCTRINATION

January 11, 2021 - Detective Goodrick completed Indoctrination at NAS Fallon with
five (5) service members in attendance.

VOLUNTEERS IN POLICE SERVICES

January 2021 -Fallon PD VIPS volunteered fifty-nine (59) hours to the agency.

Training

Sgt. Schumann attended First Line Supervisor POST training in Carson City on January
4-lS, 2021.

10 I P a g 8


